
 
 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF VARUN 
BEVERAGES LIMITED AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 
 VARUN BEVERAGES (NEPAL) PRIVATE LIMITED  

 
 VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED  

 
 OLE SPRING BOTTLERS PRIVATE LIMITED (STEP-DOWN SUBSIDIARY) 

 
 VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A.  

 
 VARUN BEVERAGES (ZAMBIA) LIMITED  

 
 VARUN BEVERAGES (ZIMBABWE) (PRIVATE) LIMITED  

 
 LUNARMECH TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED 



Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd. 

Balance sheet As At 31st December, 2020 
Post Ind AS Post Ind AS 

Note NPR NPR 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
Assets 

1) Non - Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 

(b) Capital Work In Progress 
() Deferred Tax Assets 

(d) Other Non- Current Assets 
Total Non-Current Assets 

2) Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 
b) Financial Assets 

) Trade Receivables 
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(i) Bank Balances Other Than (i) above 
(iv) Others 

() Current Tax Assets (Net) 

d) Other Current Assets 
Total Current Assets 
Total Assets 

Equity & Liabilities 

Equity 
(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity 
Total Equity 

1A 4,032,941,745 4,021,514,856 
1B 151,626,925 70,544,266 

2 22,705,116 68,902,595 

141,587,896 
4,348,861,680 

135,862,430 
4,296,824,147 

440,523,463 504,945,319 

138,418,373 96,809,938 

465,253,122 779,100,434 

882,907,329 96,790,728 
24,042,161 27,094,649 

11,873,253 16,375,468 

132,388,556 
1,653,505,092 
5,950,329,240 

10 131,598,246 
2,094,615,946 
6,443,477,626 

11 1,080,000,000 1,080,000,000 

2,361,394,959 
3,441,394,959 

12 2.511,941,363 
3,591,941,363 

Liabilities 
1) Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 

b) Provisions 

() Other Non -Current Liabilities 
Total Non-Current Liabilties 

2) Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

6) Borrowings 
i) Trade Payables 

(ii) Other financial Liabilities 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 

()Provisions 

(d) CurrentTax Liability (Net) 
Total CurrentLiabilties 

Total Liabilities 
Total Equity & Liabilities 

86,123,697 
13 94,569,889 81,764,955 
14 

180,693,586 81,764,955 

15 4,713,024 167,883,729 
16 1,314,317,242 1,103,609,760 
17 688,904,760 1,066,614,262 
18 658,341,237 85,933,423 
13 4,566,413 3,128,153 
19 

2,670,842,677 
2,851,536,263 
6,443,477,626 

2,427,169,326 
2,508,934,281 
5,950,329,240 

In Terms of Our Report of Even Date Annexed

SUBHASH & CO. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

CA. S. K. Jhunjhunwala 
*Kathmandu 

Charter 
Partner Directos INEDirector 
Place: Kathmandu 
Dated: 2021-01-28 

Kathmandu 
uneo 

Co. 



Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd. 

Profit &Loss For The Period Ended 31st December, 2020 
Post Ind AS Post Ind AS Post Ind AS Post Ind AS 

Note NPR NPR NPR NPR 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 H2| Dec 2020 04 Dec 2020 
Income 

7,614,625 414 
53,336,675 

20 6,266,785,567 3,629,180,490 1,392,938,448 Revenue From Operations 

II Other Income 21 429,405,496 44,688,213 26,027,948 

Branch Transfer 

Total Income (1+ I) 6,696,191,063 7.667 962.089 3,673,868,703 1,418,966,395 
IV Expenses 

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 

(b) Excise Duty 
()Purchase of Stock in Trade 
4) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade & WIP 

(e Employee Benefits Expense 

() Finance Costs 

(E) Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 

(h) Other Expenses 

22 2,037,210,419 2,456,269,387 1,136,286,223 419,323,646 
556453,038 216,241,420 1,094,012,574 

829,457 
971,794,888

42,840 69,4 
(23,348,198) 

(157,160) 
93,942,515 

3 

24 34,113,579 38,857575 
242,585,896 
21,775,772 

150,769,754 
17,623,908 

25 425,902,994 429,494,396 
26 192,760,784 34,840,821 
27 335,449,759 302,224,118 174,195,407 87,085,103 

1,938,218,898 
5,878,059042 

818,132,021 

2,274,408,928 
6,626,193,261 

1,041,768,828 

981,494,186 
3,206,575879 

467,292,824 

350,620,619 
1,280,564,865 

138,401,530 

28 

Total Expenses (IV) 

v Profit/(loss) Before Ptior Period Items (I-IV) 
VI Prior Period Items 29 

138,401,530 

217,082,593 
818,132,021 1,041,768,828 467,292,824 VII Profit/(loss) Before Tax (V-VID 

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depn & Amortization (EBITDA) 

VIIII Tax Expense: 

(1) Current Tax 
(2) Adjustment of Tax Related to Earlier Periods 

(3) Deferred Tax 

Total Tax Expenses 

916,937,068 1,325,497,092 618,575,791 

33,550,577 14,956,516 126,014,810 

171,373,327 

115,934,920 

45,900,215 
79,450,792 

46,653,986 
61,610,502 

32,252,488 46,197479 
343.585,616 148,187, 408 

474,546,405 893,581,420 387,842,0322 76,791,028 
IX Profit (Loss) For the Year (VII-VIIN 

X OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

A Items That Will Not to be Reclassified to Profit or Lss 
)Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans 

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 

to P & L 

B Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

Other Conmprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax 
XI Total Comprehensive Income For The Year, Net of Tax (1X+X) 474,546,A05 893,581,420 387,842,032 76,791,028 

In Terms of Our Report of Even Date Annexed

SUBHASH & CO. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Kathmadu 
d Acco 

CA. S. K. Jhunjhunwala Director Director 
Partner ERAGES 

4 
Kathmandu 

s (NE Place: Kathmandu 

Dated: 2021-01-28 C 
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd. 

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies And Other Explanatory 
Information On The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year 
Ended 31st December, 2020 

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS 
Note NPR NPR 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
4,032,941,745 1A) Property, plant and equipment R.N. 1A 4,021,514,856 

1B) Capital work in progress R.N. 1B 151,626,925 70,544,266 

2 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) (Net) 
Unabsorbed Depn & Carry Forward Losses - Deffered Tax (129,717,102) 

134,068,864 
(80,039,367) 
133,374,7522 Provision For Doubtful Debts - Deffered Tax 

Provision For Retirement Benefits - Deffered Tax 18,353,354 
22,705,116 

15,567,210 
68,902,595 

3, Other Non- Current Assets 
Capital advances 137,548,113 777,876,331 
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances (644,354,202) 

133,522,128 137,548,113 
Advances other than capital advances 

(a) Security Deposits 
(b) Advances to Related Parties 

(c) Other Advances 

4,039,783 2,340,302 

141,587,896 135,862,430 

4. Inventories 
(a) Raw material 

(b) Raw Material in transit 

() Work-in-progress 
(d) Intermediate goods 

(e) Finished goods 

9 Stores and spares 

205,207,573 280,187,875 
2,470,829 

845,892 

3,961,081 

94,511,908 72,009,601 

137,487,2611 
440,523,463 

148,786,761 
504,945,319 

5. Trade receivables 
Trade Receivable, Considered Good- Unsecured 
Trade Receivable, Considered Good -Secured 
Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired 

6,074,209 

132,344,164 
8,268,751 

88,541,188 

27,771,787 
166,190,160 

24,301,222 
121,111,160 

Allowances For Expected Credit Losses (27,771,7877 
138,418,373 

(24,301,222 
96,809,938 

6.Cash and cash equivalents 
Balance with banks: 

On current accounts 
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 

Cheques/drafts on hand 

14,046,750 21,540,985
450,000,000 756,000,000

Cash on hand 1,206,372 
465,253,122 

1,559,448 
779,100,434 
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd. 

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies And Other Explanatory 

Information On The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year 

Ended 31st December, 2020 

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS 
Note NPR NPR 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
7. Other Bank Balances 
Deposits with original maturity> 3 months but « 12 months 882,907,329 

882,907,329 
96,790,728 
96,790,728 

Pledged as security with Banks & Statutory Authorities 

8.Other Current Financial Assets 
Interest acerued on: 

Term deposits 

Others 
15,129,626 15,774,891 

4,547,118 10,641,124 
Claims Receivable 4,365,417 

24,042,161 
678,634 

27 094,649 

9.Current Tax Assets 
Advance Tax (Net of Provisions) 11,873,253 16,375,468 

10. Other Current Assets 
Unsecured Considered Good, Unless Otherwise Stated) 
Other Advances: 

Employees**** 
Contractors & Suppliers*** 

Prepaid Expenses 
Balance With Statutory/Government Authorities 

6,257,727 5,242,432 
90,038,396 46,815,295 

13,397,500 7,394,400 
9,007,800 58,468,926 

Others 12,896,823 
131,598,246 

14467,503 
132,388,556 

11. Equity Share Capital 
Authorised Share Capital 

3,380,451 Equity Shares of 1000/- Each 3,380,451,000 3,380,451,000 

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid-Up 

100,.000 Ordinary Shares of '1000/- Each 
8,000 Bonus Shares of 1000/- Each 

1,080,000.000 1,080,000,000 

1,080,000,000 1,080,000,000 
12. Other Equity 
Revaluation Reserve 
Balance At Beginning of Reporting Period/Year 
Add: Transferred during the year 

Balance at the End of the Year 

Securities Premium Reserve 

53,600,356 Balance at the Beginning of the Year 
Less: Amount Utilised for Share Issue Expenses 

53,600,356 

Balance at the End of the Year 53,600,356 53,600,3566 

Capital Reserve 88,071,842 88,071,842 
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd. 

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies And Other Explanatory 
Information On The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year 
Ended 31st December, 2020 

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS 
Note NPR NPR 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Balance At Beginning of the Year 
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 

2,219,722,761 1,650,141,341 

(307,800,00o) 
(16,200,000) 

474,546,405 
2,370,269,166 

(307 800,000) 
(16,200,000) 

893,581,420 
2,219,722,761 

Less: Dividend Paid 

Less: Taxes on Dividend Paid 

Add: Profit For the Year 

Balance at the End of the Year 

Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Diff. Account 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Additions made during the year 

Less: Amortised during the year 

Balance at the end of the year
2,511,941,363 2,361,394,959 

on-Current Financial Liabilities 
0 Loan From Others 

86,123,697 
86,123,697 

Lease Liabilities 

13. Provisions 
Non - Cunrent 

Gratuity 
Compensated Absences 

74,474,646 65,816,152 

20,095,243 
94,569,889 

15,948,803 
81,764,955 

Current 

Gratuity 
4,566,413 

4566,413 
3,128,153 
3,128,153 

Compensated Absences 

14. Other Non- Current Liabilties 
Provision for Contingent Liability (Net of tax paid under protest) 

15. Current borrowings 
Loans repayable on demand from: 

A Body Corporate (unsecured)* 
Banks- Working Capital Facilities (Secured) 

Banks - Working Capital Facilities (Unsecured) 

4,713,024 167,883,729 

4,713,024 167,883,729 

16. Trade Payables 
Trade Payables 
Total Outstanding Dues to Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

micro enterprises & small enterprises 
1,314,317,242 1,103,609,760 

1,314,317,242 1,103,609,760 
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd. 

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies And Other Explanatory 
Information On The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year 
Ended 31st December, 2020 

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS 
Note NPR NPR 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
17. Other Financial Liabilities 

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 

Current Maturities of Lease Liabilities 14,400,0000 
Interest Accrued But Not Due on Borrowings 

Payable for Capital Expenditure 
Employee Related Payables 
Unpaid Dividend 
BG Commission Payable to Parent Company 

Security Deposits 

1,076,455 1,980,809 
9,063,770 38,412,324 

27,493,534 41,849,308 
307,800,000 307,800,000 

10,307,142 

329,071,001 
688,904,760 

666,264,678 
1,066,614,262 

18. Other Current Liabilities 

Advances From Customers 13,434,251 22,952,695 
Statutory Dues Payable 644,906,986 

658,341,237 
62,980,728 
85,933,423 

19. Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Provision For Income Tax (Net of Taxes Paid) 

20. Revenue From Operations 

Revenue From Operations (Gross) 

Sale of Products 6,256,642,442 7,602,743,336 

Other Operating Revenue 10,143,126 
6,266,785,567 

11,882,079 
7,614,625,414 

21. Other Income 

Interest On: 

Bank Deposits 63,702,904 30,039,351 
- Others 13,179,630 19,199,110 
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations 55,978 1,077,243 

2,237,084 Excess Provisions Written Back 94,397 
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 742,983 347,387 
Miscellaneous 351,629,604 

429,405,496 
436,500 

53,336,675 

22. Cost of Materials Consumed 
Raw Material & Packing Material Consumed 

Inventories at beginning of the year 

Purchases during the year (net) 
284,148,956 390,574,062 

1,966,843,026 
2,250,991,982 

6,103,161 

2,349,953,984 
2,740,528,047 

Sold during the year 
Inventories at end of the year 

109,704 

207,678,402 
2,037,210,419 

284,148,956 
2,456,269,387 
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd. 

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies And Other Explanatory 
Information On The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year 

Ended 31st December, 2020 

Post Ind AS Post Ind AS 
NPR Note NPR 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
23. Purchases of Traded Goods 

Beverages 

829457 
829457 

Others 69,498 
69498 

24. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 

As At the Beginning of The Year 

Finished Goods 72,009,601 106,123,181 

Intermediate Goods 

Work In Progress 

72,009,601 106,123,181 
As At the Closing of The Year 

Finished Goods 94,511,908 72,009,601 
Intermediate Goods 

Work In Progress 845,892 
95,357,800 
23,348,198) 

72,.009,6011 
34,113,579 

Excise Paid 971,794,888 
971,794,888 

1,094,012,574 
1,094,012574 

25. Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries& Wages 385,909,385 386,614,990 
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 12,056,418 11,568,912 

31,310,493 
429,494,396 

Staff Welfare Expenses 27,937,191 
425,902,994 

26. Finance Costs 

Interest On: 

Term Loans 14,144,0000 
Working Capital Facilities 6,320,422 13,507,2922 
Financial Liabilities 9,790,383 

Others 149,763,469 
Other Borrowing Costs: 
Processing Fees 1,489,010 1,447,063 
Bank Guarantee Fees to Others 25,397,500) 

5,742,467 
34,840,8211 

Bank Guarantee Fees to Parent Company 

192,760,784 

27. Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 

335,449,759 302,224,118 

335,449,759 302,224,118 
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Varun Beverages (Nepal) Pvt. Ltd. 
Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies And Other Explanatory 
Information On The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year 
Ended 31st December, 2020 

Post Ind As Post Ind ASS 
Note NPR NPR 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 
28. Other Expenses 

Power and fuel 153,167,350 197,135,303 
93,049,793 122,167,937 Repair to Plant & Equipment 

Repair to Buildings 
Repair to Others 

Consumption of Stores & Spares 

26,880,020 41,094,762 
15,055,327 
41,536,839 

21,357,352 

58,105,417 
28,212,259 Rent 11,039,923 

Rates and Taxes 875,290 1,247,631 

Insurance 20,428,132 15,487,839 
2,573,937 

3,543,677 

17,908,241 

3,579,888 

5,806,795 
Printing and stationery 

Communication 
32,982,597 Travelling and Conveyance 

Payment to the Auditors As 

Audit &Reviews 1,700,000 2,000,000 
Taxation Matters 

Other Matters 

Reimbursement of Expenses 
Vehicle Running & Main tenance 

Lease and hire charges 
Security and service charges 
Professional charges and consultancy 

Bank charges 
Advertisement and sales promotion 
Meeting and conference 
Freight, octroi and insurance paid (net) 

Delivery vehicle running and maintenance 

Distribution expenses 
Loading and unloading charges 

11,103,298 13,552,075 

20,973,123 29,764,078 

12,554,759 14,014,424 

2,250,327 

286,880,555 

13,653,953 

186,583,854 

51,735 

363,671,221 406,450,465 
46,075,285 198,315,101 

60,420,966 81,663,178 

17,878,002 25,739,549 
306,100 561,1 

Donations 
343,101 

Property, Plant & Equipment Written Off 

Loss on disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) 
Bad Debts & Advances Written Off 

3,470,565 165,383,294 Allowance for Doubtful Debts 
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations

General office and other miscellaneous expenses 

Management Fee 

247,004,512 11,563,854

477,819,921
1,938,218,898

597643,123
2,274,408,928

29. Prior Period Items 

Depreciation of Leasehold Land for Earlier Years 

30. Other Comprehensive Income 

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 

IT relating to items that will not be reclassified to P& L 
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE)
LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TOGETHER
WITHAUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2O2O



VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2O2O

Revenue

Cost ol sales

Gross profit

Other income

Less: Expenditure
Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Profit / (loss) from operations

Finance and other costs

Profit / (loss) before tax

Income tax expense/ (reversal)

Profit i (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income/ (expense)

Actuanal gain / (loss) on emplovee benefit
obJigations

Deferred tax on actuarial gain/loss

Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for
the year

Attributable to :

Owners ofthe parent

Non-controlling interest

4-l0l 826 4 s4r t'1,
(61s.724) (849,945)

Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2019 31.12.2019

Rs' Rs'

(13.737,66s) (16,086,022)
_ 657,51A

Note

Company
Year Ended
31.12.2020

Rs.

Group
Year Ended
31.12.2020

Rs.

4

5

2,691,094,526 4,032,505,846 2,355,936,073 3,883,846,622

(1,749,124,028) (2,342,s61,090) (1,544,309,s0S) (2,2s2,17s,7e7)

941,970,498 t,689,941,756 811,626.564 I,591,370.825

101,797,214 126,471,760 141,092,810 166.096.26s

1,043,767,712 1,816,413,516 952,719,375 1,757,467,0g0

(i45,886,830) (1es,142,1t1) (174,18S,94s) (231,484.2s6)

(948.162,27s) (1,3s7,032,424) (973,382.706) (1,364,380.919)

(50,281,392) 264,238,978 (194,552,279) 161,601.915

(64.677.37s) (186,876,643) (e1,036,221) (r78,4e6,333)

(114.es9,767) 77,362,33s (285.8S8.500) (16,894,418)

80,792,019 26,955,787 - (12.s90,977)

(34J66J48 -- t04,3rs,n, -lr8s38ss00, _l-rrlss*3rs)

8

7

9

. (J0.617.646t 108.409.509 (299.626.165) (44.9tJ.878)

(30,677,646) 10s,409,s09 (2ss,626,16s) (44,913,878)

(30,677,646) r0s/0r"50, Qrr,6r6,16s,, (44"fl3J?8)

The accounting policies and notes from 0l to 24 form an integral part ofthe financial'statements.

r*':a;'1.'.-'..fi



Deloitte SJMS Associates
Chartered Accountants
No 1 1, Cast e Lane
Colombo 04
Sri Lanka

Tel: +94 T 1 25804A9, 544440A
Fax: +94 11 2582452
www delo tte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PVT) LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Varun Beverages Lanka ( Pvt) Ltd (the Company) and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ("Group") which comprise the statement of financial position as at 3l December
2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described to in the paragraphs (1) and (2) in the basis for qualified opinion
section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects of the financial
position of the Company and the Group, as at 3 I December 2020, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium Sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion
l. From 2013 to2017 Borrowing costs and exchange losses amounting to Rs.658.8 million incurred to acquire Property, Plant

and Equipment (Building and Plant and Machinery) have been capitalized under cost of such items in these financial
statements. This is not in compliance with the requirements of Sections 17, 30 and 25 of the SLFRS for SMEs. Due to the
misstatement, the loss of the Company for the year ended 3l December 2020 is overstated by Rs.24.2 million (2019- Rs.24.2
million) and the profit of the Group for the year ended 3l December 2020 is understated by Rs.24.2 million. (2019 -Rs.24.2
million) Further the net book value of property plant and equipment and retained earnings as of 3 I December 2019 and 3l
December 2020 of the Company and the Group have been overstated by Rs.536.1 and Rs.511.8 million respectively. The
misstatements represent the net impact of borrowing costs and exchange losses capitalized and the depreciation charged on the
capitalized costs.

2. As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, the Company's zero rated redeemable preference shares which met the
definition of financial liability under SLFRS For SME up to the date of 16 March 2020 (Date of conversion) were carried at
the cost of Rs. 5,870.8 million and recognized under equity up to the aforementioned date of conversion in the consolidated
and separate financial statements of the Company. Due to the changes made to the contractual terms of such preference shares
on date of conversion onwards such shares meet the definition of equity under SLFRS for SME. However, during the year of
which the preference shares meet the definition of financial liability, as per section l1 of SLFRS for SME interest expense
amounting to Rs.105.5 million (2019 - Rs.488.3 million) has to be recognized in the consolidated and separate statement of
comprehensive income. Consequently, the Company and the Group has not recognized such interest expense in the financial
statements. Due to the misstatement, the loss of the Company for the year ended 3 I December 2020 is understated by Rs. 105.5
million (2019 -Rs.488.3 million) andprofit of the Group forthe year ended 3l December2020 is overstated by Rs.105.5
million (2019 -Rs.488.3 million)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described nthe Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of
Ethics) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in'accordance 

with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Other Information
Managemeirt is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. At the date of this auditor's report, other
information was not made available to us.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knoiarledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.



Deloitte
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium Sized Entities (SLFRS for SME's), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's and Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or elror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
r Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's and
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

r Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and'events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identiff during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 163(2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007; we have obtained all the information and explanations
that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, except for the matters (l) to (2) referred in the
basis for qualified opinion paragraph, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company.

,€crrrsoe{eeic*e{
SJMS ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Colombo
29 Ianuary 2021 tet:Otts qaa-aiiO



Assets

Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress

Deferred tax asset

Investment in subsidiary - Ole Springs
Boltlers (Pvt) Ltd

Current Assets
InYentories

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties
Fixed deposits with banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equify
Stated capital

Accumulated losses

Total Equity

Non Current Liabilities
Bottle deposit payable

Retirement benefi t obligations
Deferred tax liability

Curent Liabilities
Borowings
Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related parties
Bank overdraft

Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 3I DECBMBER 2O2O

Company Group
31.12.2A20 31.12.2020

Rs. Rs.

2,515,331,425 4,469,698,456
803,733 803,733

80,176,295 80,176,295
2,596,311,454 4,550,678,485

940,828,790

2,615,398,728 4J31,001,141

940,828,790

Note
Company .

31.12.2019

Rs,

2,615,398,728

Group

31.12.2019
Rs.

4,729,771,860
1,229,281

l0
l1

9.2

I I 511,145,451 797,977,361 375,707,387 542,346,717
12 204,085,834 535,138,929 354,402,178 733,454,468
22 1,840,903,332 60,886,079 1,874,278,591 38,t 13,298
14 2,544,4n 2t1,573,028 2,602,175 122,677,457
13 . 1q7,078,875 . 1?1,903,513 16,s65,270 26,4s6,s20

2,665,757,903 1,727,378,910 2,6n;i55,6u 1+O:ltt5zo
6,202,898,147 6,275,057,395 6J80J83r'r0 -A194_089J61

l5 6,438,536,700 6.438,536,700 6,438.536,700 6,438,536,700
(926,408,886) (1,398,999,088) (59s,731,240) (1,507,408,597)

5,512,127,8t4 5,039,sj7,6n 5J42J05/60 {rxJrslffi

t6 38,409,967 t75,762,996 34,889,887 170,gg1,74g
t7 69,134,974 107,181,921 60,497,304 99,283,5669.2 70,473,563 _ t6,403.10s- 107f44g4, --fiA@ e5J8ilrr -ffi

19 100,540,883 103,657,733 205,704,490 386,908,53220 365,531,364 612,72s,669 253,875,491 3g8,53g,g7g
22 9,375,382 16,439,364 8,252,398 8,252,3982t 10-7,777,760 152,278,537 71ll!:g,!r 182,s82,224

. 181 2rs 3rL -85, 10 I J03 ---s4t gr0A6s -- g7 6,2n,BtiwneBIF 62?swi% -o,rso,rs:,rzo 
6,ts4.0ss.661

statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the companies Act No. 07 of 2007 .

Director
29 January 2021

The accounting policies and notes from 0l to 24 form an integral part of the financial statements.

The Board ofDirectors are responsible for the preparation and
Signed for and on beHalfgf

VZ
the Board.

of these fi nancial rtu,..[.n,r.

@,u/'



VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CTIANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2()2O

Stated

Capital
Rs.

Company

Balance as at 01.01.2019
Preference shares redeemed

Profit / (loss) for rhe year

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Balance as at 31.12.2019

Preference shares redeemed

Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Balance as at 31.12.2020

Group

Balance as at 01.01.2019

Preference shares redeemed '
Deferred tax adjustment ofrevalued gain on land
Profit / (loss) lor the vear
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Balance as at 31.12.2019

Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Balance as at 31,12,2020

6,624,976,100 (596,105,075)
(186,439,400)

- (28s,888,500)

- (13,737,665)

6,439,536,700 (995,731,240)

(34,166,7 4;)
- 3,489,102

6,4J8,536,700 (926.408.886)

Stated
Capital

Rs.

6,624,976,100

(186,439,400)

--?'nr8s36Joo

Accumulated
Losses

Rs.

Accumulated
Losses

Rs.

(236,063,8 I l)
(29,485,39s)
(1s,428,482)

(1,507,408,597)

(1,226,430,909) 5,399,545,192

Total

Rs.

6,028,871,025

(1 86,439,400)
(285,888,500)

(13,737,665)

5,5420905,460

(34,166,74;)

3,489,102
5,512,127,914

Total

Rs.

(186,439,400)

(236,063,8 I 1)

(29,485,39s)
(1s,428,482)

4,931,128,103

104,318,122 t04,318,122

6,439,536,700 (l,3gg,ggg,0gg) 5.039,537,612

The accounting policies and notes from 0 I to 24 form an integral part of the financial statements.

S)a*{
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2O2O

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Prolrt / (loss) belore taxarion

Adjustment for:
Depreciation

Gain / (loss) on disposal ofproperty. plant and equipment
ESC write off
Asset scrap loss

Expiries and breakages

Provision for bad and doubtful debl
Provision for gratuitl,

Operating profit before working capital changes

\\rorking Capital Changes
(lncrease) / decrease in inventories

Increase / (decrease) in amounts due to related parties
(lncrease) / decrease in amounts due from related parties

(lncrease) / decrease in accounts receivable
lncrease / (decrease) in accounts pavable

Cash generated from / (used in) operations

lncome tax paid

Granritl'paid
Cash florvs from operating / (used in) activities

Cash Florvs from lnvesting Activities
Acquisition of property. plant and equipment
Disposal / settlement of investment

Expenditure on capital work in progress

Proceeds on sale ofproperty, plant and equipment

Fixed deposits in banks

Net cash used in investing activitics

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net borrowings

Redemption of preference shares

Lease payments

Net cash flou, lrom financins activities

Net increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning olthe year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe year
(Note 13 & 211

Analysis of ca-sh and cash equiva,lents at the end of the year
Cash in hand and cash at bank
Bank overdraft

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended Year Enrled year Bnded
31.12.2020 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.201s

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

(114,es8,767) 77,362,33s (285,883,500) (16,8e4,418)

198,225,436 379,732,833 223,937,693 403,859,735
_ (1,482,624)

t4,192,566 75,414,313 28,026,201 45,542,846
11,556,4t2 36,549,9'79 17,234,925 35,740,824
3,004,431 10,029,154 13,586,189 30,613,904
3,951,726 57,612,559 44,506,958 128,005,971
t4,838,321 21,170,848 t2,293,066 19,294,953

130,810,126 657,872,020 53,696,532 644,681,190

(138,442,495) (26s,6s9,740) (109,769,780) (166,199,s6s)
1,122,984 8,186,965 1,628,015 (19,489,034)

33,375,259 (22,772,781) 363,578,139 10,286,r 15

132,172,052 65,288,694 (78,546,049) 257,9s0,076
115,175,954 218,9562937 (100'939'617) (226,069,747)
274,213,880_ 661,872,097 129,647,239 531,158,985

- (5,682,182)

(2,0e5,826) (8,331,161) (9,658,6S8) (13,340,477)
272,118,055 6s3,540,936 I 19.988,552 512,136.327

(111,466,037) (156,158,8Se) (e8,279,es4) (235,255,4st)
- 175,544,380

(803,73 3)

1,751,493

(1,376,462)

1,751,466

- (1,229,281)
1,157 .393 7 ,032.393

s7,764 (88,895,s71) (2,400,000) (t05,403,000)
(1t0,460,514) (244,679,457) 76,021,819 (334,888,379)

(105,163,607) (253,250,7s9) (r47,006,130) (163,174,7gg)
- (186,439,400) (t86,439,400)

(10s,163,607) (283,250,79e) (337,7t0,476) (353,87e,145)

s6,493,934 12s,610,680 (141,700,106) (t76,631,ts})
(57,t92,819) (156,085,704) 84,507,287 20,545,494

(698.8q5) G0,475,024) (57,192,819) (156.085.704)

107,078,875 121,803,513 16,965,270 26,496,520
(r07,777,760) (1s2,278,537) (74,158,089), (152,s52,224)

(698,885) (30,475,024) (57,t92,819) 056.0s5.704i

The accounting policies and notes from 0 I to 24 form m
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1.1

VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRTVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2O2O

General
Reporting Entity
Varun Beverages Lanka (Private) Limited (the "company") is a limited liabilify company
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered offlice of th" 

"o.npany 
and the principal place

of business is located at No. 140, Low Level Road, Embulgama, Ranala.

Principal Activities and Nature of Operations
The Company - Varun Beverages Lanka (private) Limited
The principle activity_of the company is to manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic
beverages & purified drinking water.

Subsidiary - OIe Springs Botflers @vt) Ltd
The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic
beverages and purified drinking water.

Parent and Ultimate Parent Enterprises
The company's parent undertaking is Varun Beverages Limited and in the opinion of the directors, thecompany's ultimate pl{ent undertaking is RJ Corp Limited. Both interm"diut" p*"n, and ultimate
parent are incorporated in India.

Date of Authorization for fssue
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 296 Januarv 2a2l

1.2

1.3

1.4

?. Summary of Significant Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation

2.1.1 Basis of Consolidation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the sri LankaAccounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs) i"fa-4"*r'UiTn"
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka except for Notes 2.2.1,2.,4.1 and 2.7.2 These threepolicies which deviate from sLFRS for SMEs, are adopted to be in line with group accounting
policies.

All values presented in these financial statements are in Sri l,ankan Rupees (Rs.) rounded to the
nearest rupee. The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis.

The previous. period figures and phrases have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform to
current period presentation

2.1.2 Going Concern
When preparing the financial statements the directors have assessed the ability of the company andthe group to continue as a going concern. The directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company and the group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future' The company, and the group do not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation of trading,taking into account all available information about the future and actordingly, they continue to alopt
the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.



2.1.3 Consolidation
2.1.3.1 Consolidation Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the company for year ended 31 Decembe r 2020 includes OIeSprings Bottlers (pvt) Ltd which is a subsidiary of trre company.

2.7.3.2 Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries ate all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power togovern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generallyaccompanying a shareholding of more than half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries i're fullyconsolidated from the date on which control is transfered to the !.ori. ih.y ur" de-consolidated
from the date the control ceases

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in theacquisition of subsidiaries by.the gioup. The cost of a business combination is measured as the fairvalue of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date ofexchange, plus costs directly attributable to the business combination. Identifiable assets acquired andliabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at theirfair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the business combination over theacquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognized is recorded as goodwill.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Appropriate adjustments have been made where necessary to ensure
adopted by the group.

2.1.3.3 Investment in Subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary is recognized at cost less impairment losses in separate financial statements.

2.2 Functional and presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees which is the company,s and the group,sfunctional and presentation currency. AII financial information presented has been rounded to thenearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

2.2.1 Transactions and Balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange ratesprevailing at the dates of such transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from theseftlement of such transactions and from the transi-ation at piriod-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the p.Jfit o. lor, .*""pi fo,the exchange gain/loss on the translation of the foreign cu..en"y loans taken to finance fixed assetaquisition is capitalized with the respective asset.

2.9 Revenue
2.3.1 Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received orreceivable, net of returns and allowances. Revenue is reoognized when the significant risks andrewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, theissociated costs and possible return ofgoods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

2.3.2 Other Income
2.3.2.1 f,'oreign Services Incbme

Foreign service income and subsidies are recognized in the financial statements at their fair value.when the foreign service income or subsidy relates to an expense it iwnen rne rorelgn serylce lncome or subsidy relates to an expense it is recognized as iniome over theperiod necessary to match it with the costi, which it is intended to comoensate for on a svsrem,r;c

consistency with the policies

basis.

2.3.2.2 Rent Income
Rent income is recosnized on nn qcnrrrql h,oio



2.5

2.4 Expenditure Recognition
Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of a direct association between the costincuffed and the earning of specific items of income, All expenditure incurred in the running orrt 

"business and in maintaining the property, glant and equipment in a state of efficiency traie been
charged to revenue in a*iving at the profit/ (ioss) for the year.

2.4.1 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing cost incurred on acquisition of property plant and equipment are capitalized as a part of the
cost of the asset .All other borrowing costs are recognised in piodt or loss in t'he period in which they
are incurred

Leases
Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other leases are classified as
operating lease.

Rights to assets held under finance lease are recognized as assets of the company at the fair value of
th-e leased property (or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease paymenti) ai the commencement
of the lease' The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the itatement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payrnents are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
9f the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remainiig balance of theliability. Finance charges are deducted in measuring profit or loss. Assets held under finance leases
are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in
the same way as owned assets. Rentals payable under operating Ieases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term ofthe relevant lease.

2.6 Income Tax Expense
2.6.1 Company

For a period of six (06) years reckoned from the year of assessment already determined by the Boardof Investment of Sri Lanka (BoI) ("tax exemption period") the provision. Lf tn" Inland Revenue AcrNo' 24 of 2017 relating to the imposition, payment and-recovery of income tax in respect of theprofits and income of the Company shall not apply to the profit and income of the Company.

For the above purpose the year of assessment shall be reckoned from the year in which the enterprise
commences to make profits or any year of assessment not later than two 1OZ; years reckoned from the
date of commencement of commercial operations, whichever yea. is 

"uili"r, 
as specified in a

certificate issued by the Board of Investment of Sri Lanka (BoI).

After the aforesaid tax exemption period refemed to above, the profits and income of the Enterprise
shall be charged atthe rate of fifteen per centum (lS%).

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the canying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial statements and their corresponding t?I bases ([no"wn as temporary differences). Deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differencei that are 

""p""t"d 
tL increase tu*ur" froniin the future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all terhporary diff"..n"r, that are."p."t"JtL

reduce taxable profit in the future, and any unused tax losses or unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets
are measured at the highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated future taxable profit, is
more likely than not to be recovered.

The net carryingamount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at eachreporting date and is adjusted toreflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments arJ recognised in profit or

in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

rates that have



2.6.2 Subsidiary
Defeffed tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial statements and their corresponding tax bases ([no-wn as temporary differences). Deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected tt increase taxable profit
in the future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary diff.r.n.., that are expectld to
reduce taxable profit in the future, and any rinused tax losses or unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets
are measured at the highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated future taxable profit, is
more likely than not to be recovered.

The net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to
reflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustm.ntr u.I recognised in profit or
loss. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

2.7 Stated Capital
2.7.1 Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2,7.2 Redeemable Preference Shares
The company has classified redeemable preference shares into the equity and measured at cost.

2.8 Tangible Assets
2.8,1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the'location and condition necessary ior it to be capable of tperating in the
manner intended by management.

The group adds to the carrying amount of an item of properfy, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing parts of such an item when that cost is incuried-if ihe'replac".eni part is expected to
provide incremental future benefits to the group. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to prJfit or loss during the year in which
they are incurred. I,and is not depreciated. Depreciation on othei assets is charged so as to allocate the
cost of assets less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using iire straight-line method
is as follows:

Rate (%)

25.00
i o.oo
14.29
12.50
25.00

3.34
4.7 5

4.75
12.50

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since thg last reptrting
date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset,s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
and are recognized within finance and other costs

Assets

Computers
Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles
Trade equipment
Office equipment
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Tools and equipment
Bottles and crates

comparing the proceeds
in the statement of com



2.8.2 CapitalWork-in-Progress
Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost. In respect of Projects under construction, incidental and
attributable expenses (net of incidental income) including lnterest expenses is carried as part of
incidental expenditure during construction to be allocated on major immovable project assets other
than land and infrastructural facilities, on commissioning of the project.

2.9 Intangible Assets
2.9.1 ComputerSoftware

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses' It is amortized over its estimated life of five years using the straight-line method.lf there is an indication that there has been a significant change in amoiization ra6, useful life or
residual value of an intangible asset, the amortization is rev[ed prospectively to reflect the new
expectations.

2.10 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properfy and intangible assets are
reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered-an impairment
loss' If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or
group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimaied recoverable amount, and
an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

If an impairment loss for a non-financial asset other than goodwill subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increasid to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset (or group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.ll Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. The costs incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and conjition, are
accounted for as follows:

Raw materials - On actual cost on a weighted average basis
Finished goods - Valued at standard cost basis
other inventories - on actual cost on a weighted average basis

2.12 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to significant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose ofcash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist ofcash in hand and deposits
in bank net ofoutstanding bank overdrafts.

3.1 Financial fnstruments
Trade and other recei.vables are initially recognized at the transaction price. All sales are made on the
basis of normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interesi. et tn. end of each reporting
period, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether ihere is
any objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. If so, an impairment loss is recognized
immediatety in profit or loss. 

rt{r; j.;;"--""""'
oz.'\o y'- l*t*\.r

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the transaction price fi"gii{gg:rfi"'ifJtiA? )nti\1. r.ua.
payables are obligations on the basis of normal credir rerms and do 

"g1 Qu7lir.r"* li:.;l*$i1;;g



3.2 Defined Benefit PIan - Gratuity
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. In order to meet this liability, a provision is carried forward in theStatement of financial 

.p_osition. The provision is made on the basis of an actuarial valuation asrecommended by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for SMEs considering the projected Unit Credit(PUC) method and premium for the period is charged as an expense to the Income Statement in theperiod which is relate. The fund is not externally funded.

However, as per the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability arises only upon thecompletion of five years of continuous service.

Defined Contribution Plan - EpF & ETF
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no Iegal oi constructive obligation to pay further
amounts' obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recog,rTzed as an employeebenefit expense in the income statement as in the periods auiing which ."iri"", are rendered byemployees.

Employees' Provident Fund
The company and employees contribute 12Yo and 8Yo respectively on the salary of each employee to
the approved Provident Fund.

Employees' Trust Fund
The company contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to the Employees, Trust Fund.

Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the company's and group's financial statements require management to makejudgments, estimates and assumptions thit efiect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assetsand liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Actual results maydiffer from these estimates.

Estirnates and underlying assumptions are rer,riewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates ate recognized in the period in which the estimate is rJvisei or in the period of revision andfuture periods, only ifthe revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to thecarrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financi al year L" alr"f."a u}o*.
a) Defined benefit plans

The carrying value of defined benefit plans is determined using a formula which considers the
actuarial assumption' This involves making various assumptiois which may differ from actual
developments in the future' These includelhe deterrnination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, etc. Due to_the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and their longterm nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to ctranfes in thfse assumptions. Allassumptions are reviewed at each reporting daie. The assumptions used in the valuation andsensitivities there on are disclosed in note 17.

3.3

3.4



5.1

Revenue

Local sales

Export sales

Trade discount

Nation Building Tax
Excise duty

Cost of Finished Goods Manufactured
Finished goods at the at the beginning ofthe year
Finished goods purchase
Factory cost transferred (Note 5. l)
Finished goods at the end ofthe year

Factory Cost Transferred
Raw materials at the beginning of the year
Raw material purchase

Raw material at the end of the year
Raw material consumed
Production overheads (Note 5.2)

Production Overheads

Salaries

Wages

Overtime
Bonus

Allor.l,ance

Employees' Provident Fund
Employees'Trust Fund
Staff wellare

Medical

Terminal gratuit),'

Fuel

Chemicals

Lab consumables

Lab testing charges

Staff uniforms

Electriciry

Posrage and courier charges
Telephone

General insurance

Printing and stationery
Securih,charges

Motor vehicle fuel
Depreciation

- Factory building
- Plant and machinery
- Olfice equipment
- Furniture and fiuingi
- Motor vehicles and forklift
- Computers
- Bottles and crates

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended year Ended year Ended
31.t2.2020 31.12.2020 3t.t2.2otg 31.12.2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

3,108,87s,094 4,684,s63,886 2,690,400,246 4,60s,082,5s8
101,14t,45t 103,868,127 170,380,151 172,314,095

={u. 
\,+=?1,167) 

(1.48_,785,680) (36,664,s1s) (170,458,61s)
3,148,s91,182 4,639,646,333 2,824,115,4n 4,610,938,W

(42,079,696) (8s,602,783)

=@s=7,,!e-1,116) 
(607,140,488) (426,0es,710) (641,488,632)

2,6et,0s4,s26 4r03rflEgIq _2,35ip36,0n 3.883.846.622

60,049,567 8t,983,229 54,962,649 73,142,657_ 37,05r,600 - 52,813,678
t,764,222,855 2,343,208,905 1,54s,396,426 2,248,s02,6s1

.\7::J,48.121) (Ile,67e,64s) (60,04s.567) (81.e83.22e)
1,749,124,018 -*4r.sg!J_g__u44J0rJ08 

2.2s2.47s.7s7

202,947,264 296,606,869 146,276,t42 205,697 ,309
1,324,074,251 t,714,847,780 1,105,752,928 1,543,622,958

t(17=9,17:=.1?3:) 
(462,74.7.?6e) (202,s47.26q Os6.606.s6e)

1,2s0,742,922 1,548,707,380 1,049,081,806 - 1,4s2JBsn

, 111,!-72,st=t 794,s0l,s25 s00.3 14.620 7es.78s.2e4
1.764-222,8552.343,208,9051.549396.4%-L224r248.2483U.6q1

g6,878,tsg 121,171,893 79,2s.7,482 t06,01g,466
1 1,531,436 25,802,147 12,8A9,528 26,863,330
31,868,151 44,333,642 19,521,309 28,024,550
11,026,393 13,490,546 11,49t,142 ru,agg,827
6,314,259 6,472,510 4,993,64t 5,651,374

1t,975,948 14,829,897 9,980,694 l3,2tg,6lt
2,994,744 3,708,231 2,495,173 3,304,902
8,553,668 8,635,632 4,1 18,805 6,933,355
2,115,777 2,368,528 t,7o0,g6o 2,084,836
3,266,654 4,228,062 2,654,263 3,716,319

42,067,721 42,780,592 48,421,245 52,651,941
22,468,439 37,888,s90 27,830,409 s1,011,748

- 797,340 - 2,366,472
2,072,524 2,072,524 6,572,729 6,572,729

- 2,885,042 _ 2,027,792
83,286,844 109,791,175 89,117,845 t10,128,g70
I,465,32V t,465,327 821,234 821,234
252,266 1,436,148 46,368 945,889

2,083,654 3,721,862 t,ggg,l6s 3,350,021
770,229 770,229 1,400,105 1,400,105

5,236,388 12,400,644 5,761,481 13,336,482
- 67,988 _ t86.129

5.2

I 06,3 80,3 I 0

10.344.44;
49.635,841

890,759

3,s92,731

129,414,912

5 I ,451
73,706

942,807

180,228
108,647,731

16,261,291

73,276,879

890,759

50,483

I 04,966,803

.

6.675,069

56.721,598

957.573

3,160,620

I 28,030,068

19,141

327,264

605,498
' 327,44'j

109,9t9,98',1

14,884,643

82,270,757

957,573

569,212

Building repair and

Equipment maintenance
Travelling and transport
Loading charges



6, Other Income
i,-oreign scrvices incolle
Disposal of propertl,. plant and equiprnent
Scrap sales

Miscellaneous income
Exchange gain
Interest income

9, Taxation
Income tax expenses
Defered tax expense / (benefit) (Note 9.2)
Defened tax charge against other comprehensive income
Income tax expenses

Income tax payment for previous year

Company Group Company Group
Year Ended Year Ended year Ended year Ended
31.12.2020 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2019Rs. Rs, Rs. Rs.

98,495,493_ 98,495,493 137,555,319 t37,555,31g

t,482,624
2,607,112 14,880,797

88,500 88,500
2,209,554 10,098,440

456, I 58

229,013
456,158

2,413,861

7. Loss Before Tax is Stated after charging ail Expenses Inctuding the Foilowing:

Personnel cost

Defined contribution plan costs - EpF &ETF
Provision for gratuity
Bonus

Depreciation

Insurance

Auditor's fees

Finance Cost & Other Cost
Bank overdraft interest
Lease interest
Asset scrap loss

Short term loan interest
Expiries and breakages

Bank charges

ESC write off
Exchange loss

Interest on gratuity

: :: g ,l ? 13,006,e6e 642.766 14,08e,863
tot,7e72q - rr6A7JI60 

*l4lprrslo 
166,0s6,265

363,248,580 491,1t9,369 346,075,87s 482,633,000
44,396,544 53,145,726 41,018,210 49,277,466
8,407,458 10,617,005 7,861,374 10,025,785

24,908,047 28,803,321 30,001,604 35,317,957
198,225,436 379,732,833 223,937,693 403,8ss,73s

5,568,533 7,206,741 5,042,510 6,393,366
l,611,301 2,683,330 1,878,274 2,863,405

6,233,638_ 10,677,588 16,701,410 24,062,421
- 727 ,916 727,916

11,556,412 36,549,979 17,234,925 35,740,824
12,18t,041 22,702,190 8,700,887 30,609,360
3,004,431 10,029,154 13,586,189 30,6t3,g04
1,120,652 3,179,696 763,662 t,g29,8g5

14,192,566 75,414,313 28,026,201 45,542,846
9,9s7,771 17,769,881

,f.,11=9,89t_ 10,s5_i,s-41 5,2ss,031 s,26s,168
64.677,375 1s6,876,643 91,036221 - 178/g63n

9.1 Reconciliation ofthe total tax charge
A reconciliation between tax expense and the product ofaccounting profit multiplied by the statutory tax rate is as follows:

Accounting profit / (loss) as per financial
statement

Aliowable credits
Non- deductible expenses

lnterest income
Tax loss claimed
Tax ioss removed for tax holiday period
Tax profit/ (loss) for the year of assessment

Tax expense

(80,7s2,01s) (26,s5578i 
-##

(114,9s8,767) 77,362,33s (285,838,500) (16,8s4,418)

(1s4,664,688) . (214,714,s20) (191,813,358) (451,837,737)
214,015,745 528,497,125 328,934,435 637 ,460,541

(80,176,2es) . (26,10s,842)
(61s,724) (549,945)

606,109 t3,006,969
(606,109) (459,759,618)

- 6,25t.225
- 657.570

642,766 14,089,863
(642,766) (331,s8s,672)

55,607,7t0 55,607.710 148.767.423 148.161.423

-------------: ----------:- 
----_____ 

-_ __-__--____-__:

Income tax rates are explained in ',Note 2.6 Income Tax Expense,,



9.2 Deferred tax balances
Company Property,

plant &
equipment

Rs.

Retirement
benefit

obligation
Rs.

Bad Debt
Provision

Rs,

Unused tax
losses

Rs.

Total

Rs.

Balance as at I January 2019
Recognised in changes in equity
Recognised in profit or loss
Balance as at 3l December 2019

Balance as at I January 2020
Recognised in profit or loss
Balance as at 3l December 2020

Deferred tax of the company has
agreement with BOI.

Subsidiary

Deferred tax balances

Recognised in changes in equity
Recognised in profit or loss
Balance as at 31 December 2019

Balance as at I January 2020
Recognised in profit or loss
Balance as at 3I December 2020'

ProperQr, Retirement Bad Debt Unused tax
plant & benefit provision losses

equipment obligation

Rs, Rs. Rs, Rs.

____-___- _ _-_--____j_ _________:_ ___-___________

\1-1,??4,,6,1?1 10,370,246 2.734.e?8 380,2e5,788 80,176,2s5O ,n4,66?)-@C@-ffi-ffi
been calculated at the rate of l5o/o which is future tax rate applicable to the entity as per

Total

Rs.

(2s3,594,374) 12,642,s24 _ 466,863,807 225,s11,s57(236,063,811) _ (236,063,81l)

=i,l l,ggf (t,782,37t) (e,57s,88e) t6.2s1.255)1M.s51$q I0s60,53 __________=_ 
-asrEf ,8 

=JffiIgI(484,5s1,180) 10,860,153 457,287,918 (16,403,109)

,,1.9,?1_!,!_11 (207,008) 38,2ss,024 (t28,436,s25) (54.070.453)
_g48,r76Jrs) 10153,146 @- -ffi*.a

Deferred tax ofthe subsiiary has been calculated at the rate of28o/owhichis future tax rate applicable to the entity andsubstantially enacted as ofthe period end.

eXi",*L+\;
,s-tifa;t4



10.

10.1

Property, Plant and Equipment
Freehold property, plant and equipment
(l.Iote 10.1 and 10.2)

Leasehold propefty, plant and equipment

Freehold Property, Plant and Equipment

Company

Cost
Building

Corlputers
Furniture and fittings
Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Boftle and crates

Trade equiprnent

Total

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Computers

Furniture & fittings
Machinery and other equiprnent
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipntent

Total

Written Doryn \ralue

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2020 31.t2.2020 31.12.2019 31.t2.20t9

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

2,515,331,425 4,469,698,456 2,615,398,728 4,729,771,860

2,5ts,3311!2tnv6r'6r3,4s6r,61ssrsJ:x-OrW-l1,560

148,145,683 16,232,543 (18,836,413) 145,541,814
424,299,247 55,581,689 _ (733,243) 47s,147,6s3

3,e2#i*3s --r11,466W (r,,ffi @

Balance at the
beginning Additions

of the year
Rs. Rs.

90 1,088,006 536,950
12,0t5,416 4,048,380
7,642,037 655,220

2,208,034,690 31,376,078
209,347,686 2,060,000

I 3,805,574 975,176

169,573,798 29,963,038
7,767,539 2,158,344
1,992,056 844,223

58r,253,212 I 06,380,3 l0
168,563,333 13,716,560

6,933,7s6 2,985,355
37,000,918 18,126,227

335,895,024 24.05 t.380
1,308.979,636 t98,22s,436

_z{_ElrR_?2R

Balance
l,lsDosals/
write off at the end of

the year
Rs. Rs.

901,624,956

16,063,796

8,297,257
(597,231) 2,238,813,s37

2t 1,407 ,686
14,780,7 50

I 99,536,83 6

9,925,883

2,836,279

687,369,391

182,279,892

9,919,111

48,715,361

359,763,310

1,500,346,063

2;]f33J,42s_

(264,131)

(6,411,784)

(l 83,093)
(6,8s9,008)

'1ffic^1tr9t"+\i.

: ( f,$?lfl^^'x'e



7-]

10,2 Freehold Property, plant and Equipment

Group

Balance at the Additions Disposals/ Balance
beginning write off at the end of
ofthe year the year

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost
Land

Building
Computers

Furniture and fittings
Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Offibe equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipment

Total

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings

Computers

Fumiture and fittings
Machinery and other equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Bottle and crates

Trade equipment

Total

Written Down Value

Capital Work-in-Progress

Company

Description

Building
Plant and machinery

Group

Building
Plant and machinery

536,95;
16,632,412 4,103,380
t2,396,053 683,178 - 8,079,232

2,689,418,501 33,538,274 (sg7,23t) 2,722,359,544
238,925,236 2,060,000 - 240,985,236
16,248,927 1,609,513 - 17,858,440

1,507,654,549 56,898,601 (62,491,325) 1,502,061,826
818,391,183 58,53t,003 (733?43) 876,188,943

7.3t7.Oe6,343 r5?gqg,8r, __lat1l,?r8) -7.4|t,A|1, 5A

222,775,308 33,731,227 _ 2s6,506,s35
11,619,029 2,636,437 _ 14,255,466
6,163,644 978,234 _ 7,141,878

756,066,228 129,414,912 (264,131) 88s,217,OOg
192,6A6,666 14,932,123 - 207,538,789

8,545,164 3,499,865 - t2,045,028
901,616,2s2 126,773,9s8 (25,073,130) 1,003,317,081

197,2??,?!8_ 67,766,076 (183,0e3) 55s,515,200
2,587,324,509 379,732,833 O,s,s,f.ls4)-.rg4t,s36,rs7

4,729,771,834 4.469,698,456

972,314,280

- 1,045,652,1s2

- 20,735,792

803.733

972,314,280
t,045,115,202

11.

ll.1

Balance at the Additions Transfers Balance
beginning at the end of
ofthe year the year

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

803,73 3

_ 6uJ, /JJ _ 903"733803,733

- 803,733 - 803,733

l_,2??,?ll s72,72e (1,s02,0r0)
1.229,281 t,376,462 _ ( t"802p10) -- 803.ru

'5$?iff^-*%'

tt.2



13.

Il, Inventories
Finished goods

Raw materials

Chemicals and fuel
Goods in transit
Spare parts

12. Trade and Other Receivables
Trade debtors

Less: Impairment provision for trade debtors

Other receivables

Deposits and prepayrnents

Staff loans and festival advances

VAT receivable

NBT receivable

Income tax and economic service charge receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch
Nations Trust Bank PLC
Hafton National Bank - Kaduwela
Sampath Bank

People's Bank - Hanwella
People's Bank - Corporate Division
Stardard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch (USD)
Saving AC - Hatton National Bank
Marginal AC - Commercial Bank of Ceylon pLC
Cash in hand

Fixed Deposits in Banks
Fixed deposits - Nations Trust Bank PLC
Fixed deposits - Commercial Bank of Ceylon pLC
Fixed deposit - Hatton National Bank PLC

15. Stated Capital

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares

Redeemable

preference shares *

Total

Company Group Company Group
31.12.2020 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2019

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

75,148,394 119,679,645 60,049,567 81,983,229
276,278,593 462,747,269 202,947,264 296,606,869
17,529,989 27,872,798 17,598,918 25,413,268
22,821,021 22,821,021 22,866,662 22,866,662

!_?T7.,111 164,856,62e 72,244,e77 115,476,74s
511,145,451 797,977,361 375,707,387 542,346Jn

143,487,549 578,080,729 306,057,696 677,565,071
qq,T2,8s2) (155,01s,082) (44,8s7,772) (12s,fi1,566)
125,254,696 423,065,646 261,199,924 54S,453,505

18,615,179 26,993,207 21,399,439 29,283,466
52,119,605 64,517,389 38,810,394 58,2s3,244
3,268,415 3,618,952 2,906,680 3,335,199
4,715,261 1,523,365 15,780,497 3,272.664

- 21,708

=. , !!2.,9!7 1s,420,36e 14,305,243 s0,834,682
204,08s,834 535,t38,929 354,402,178 i33A54,468

;2-015,963 2.263,849

592.623 I 1.858.332
510.912 510.912

- 2.309,979

1.795,396

2,121.926

1,447.5'/8

506,461

2,289,270

4,242,201
2,121,926

1,737,163

1,47 6,0123,1 15,502 3, l4 1,686

89,979.416 89,9',7 9,416
5,052,219

2,169,900
5,052.219

2,346.900
3,886,842

2,275,616
3,886,842
3,944,266

,:=,q!?,?!o 434a,220 5,437,e12 6,2s2,37s
107,078,87s ,_ j?1,803,!lL 16,e65,270 za,+s6*

14.

2,544,41t 116,274,076

4,011,459

91,297,493

2,602,175 118,665,998
- 4,011,459

2,544,411 2t 1,573,028 2,602,17 5 122,677 ,457

sh a res

Valueofashare l0 l0 l0 l0
No. of shares 643.853,670 643.853.670 56.-175.000 s(\ 1.75 ot\o
Totalvalue ff3Sr536.?00 6/38J36J00 56?J50O00 -ffi

: 58,707,121 *,rr,l2l
- 5.870.786.700 5.870.786 700

6.438.536.700 6,438,536,700 6.438.536.700

As per the agreement, the shares werezero rated redeemable shares at the point of issuance and redeemabl e arzero premium. T.he
redemption of preference shares were to happen in seven years in 4 tranches starting from 4th year onwards. On 16 March 2020
company converted the preference shares into equity shares by issuing 587,078,670 ordinary shares. Accordingly as of3ln-^^*l^-- 1n1n -,,^L ^L^-^^ ^-^ :-^r--r^r - ,I

Value of a share

No. of shares



16.

17.

Bottle Deposit Payable
Deposits against assets

Dealership deposits

Retirement Benefi t Obligations
Balance at the beginning ofthe year
Current service cost
Interest charge for the year

Expected future salary increment
Discount rate

Staffturnover rate
Retirement age

Lease creditors

Lease Liability - Nations fruJt Sank-t6 6473412
Balance at the beginning ofthe year
Repayments during the year

Interest in suspense

Payable within one year
Payable after one year

Lease Liability - Nations Trust Bank-l66473519
Balance at the beginning ofthe period
Repayments during the period

Interest in suspense

Payable within one year

Payable after one year

Short Term Borrowings
Commercial Bank of Ceylon pLC

Trade and Other Payabfes
Trade payables

Stamp duty
Withholding tax payable

Excise duty
Accrued and other payables

Economic service charge payable

Other creditors

37,109,967 149,279,417 33,589,887 143,766,013

_ :l,l ,ggg 26,483,s7e 1,300,000 27,22s,737
38,409,967 17s,762,996 34,889,88t 170,991,749

60,497,304 99,283,566 44,125,260 77,243,067

Company Group
31.12.2020 3t.12.2020

Rs. Rs.

60; 690

7.5% 7.5% & 6.75%
3% 3%

55 Years 55 Years

Company Group
31.12.2019 31.12.2019

Rs. Rs.

8,407 ,458 10,6 1 7,005 7 ,861,37 4 10,02s,785

(Gains) / losses arising from changes in actuarial valuation (4,104,g26) (4,941,332) 13,737,665 16,0g6,022

Present value of employees transferred
Payments during the year
Balance at the end ofthe year

- (863,339) 72,830

The following assumptions were used in determining the post employment benefit obligation :

6,430,863 10,553,843 5,295,031 9,269,168
7s,33s,625 t20,454,414 y?281,66s 

'6J3Spr0

\?,925:\?1) (8,331,r6r) (e,658,688) (13,413,307)
69.134,974 _ 107,t81,92t 60.497.i04 99,rn,566

9%

10.6%

3%

55 Years

9yo

10.6%

30h

55 Years

18.

_ 3,469,473 3,469,473

____* 
- 

(3,469,473) (3,46e,473)

1,523,399 1,523,399
(t,s23,399) (t.s23,399)

19.

100,540,883 103,657,733 205,704,490 386,908,532
r00,540.883 t03.657,733 205.704.490 386.908J32

124,540,190 289,589,679
37,100

64,620,537

67,700

85,286,025
94,013,497

61,899,7 t9
58,1 75

104,775

90,624,104
40,101,374

2,942,929

126,16t,7 57

99,525
246,102

13t,262,294

77,110,648

5,515,238

20.

564,773

143,768,768 58,144,414 58,144,414



I

21. Bank Overdraft
Standard Chartered Bank-LKR A/C
Standard Chartered Bank-USD A/C
Hatton National Bank - Kaduwela
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

Company Group Company
31.12.2020 31.12.2020 3t.t2.2019

Rs. Rs, Rs.

Amount due from related
Company Group
31,12.2020 31.t2,2020

Rs. Rs.

58.037,s04 58,984,552 23,228,152 23,228,152
24,t90,422 24,190,422

- 15 I ,630 151,630

Group
31.12.2019

Rs.

,!^?!!9_,?1? e3,2e3.e8s 26.s87,88s t3s.ot2.o20
107,777,760 1s2,278,s37 74.158,089 18r"584U

Securities Pledged for Short Term Loan & Bank Overdrafts

a) Standard chartered Bank Primary concurrent mortgage over stocks and receivables lor Rs.
450Mn located at No 140, Low Level Road, Embulgama, Ranala.

b) Commerciai Bank

Corporate Guarantee from Ole Springs Bottlers (pvt) Ltd.

Primary Concurrent mortgage for Rs 600Mn along with Standard
Chartered Bank over Stocks & Book debtors. General terms and
conditions relating to overdraft, import Demand Loans & Short Term
Loans signed by the Company. Corporate Guarantee from Varun

22. Related Party Transactions

Identification of R€lated Parties
Related parties include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsibility lor
planning, directing and controlling the activitjes ofthe company.

During the year, Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuriya, Mr. Achai Kumar. Mr. Amit Joshi, and Mr. Tilak de Zoysa were the directors of
the company.

Amount due to related parties
Company Qroup
31.12.2020 31.12.2020

- 8.432.50q I 5,4e6,4q I

20.340,040

Rs.

Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvr) Ltd - Subsidiary
Varun Beverages Ltd-Parent Company
Devyani Foods Industries(Kenya) Ltd

Fellow Subsidiaries
Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd

OIe Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Lrd
Varun Beverages Ltd-Parent Company

Fellow Subsidiaries
Varun Beverages (Zambia) Limited
Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd

t,780,017,2s2

20,340.040

1,840,903,332

40.546.03e 40,546,019

q0,886,079 9,375.382 16,439,364

Amount due from related Amount due to related parties
Company Group Company Group
31.12.2019 31.72.2019 31.12.2019 3t.12.20ts

Rs.

I ,836,1 65,293

18.1 13,298

-- 
2.276,73i ,,rru,rri

38, I 1 3.298

5.97 5.660 s.97 5.660
38. t 13,298 8.252.398 8.252.395

Rs.

1 ,8'7 4 ,27 I ,59 
,l

riiliii's +aa aoo



22. Related Party Transactions (Contd...)

During the Period, the Company and the group entered into the following transactions with the related parties,

Comoanv

Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd-subsidiary
Sale offinished goods

Purchase of raw materials
Payments/ settlements
Land lease expense
Discounts & other expenses

Varun Beverages Ltd, India -Parent Company
Purchase ofspare parts and raw materials
Sales

Export receipt
Software license fee
Payments/ settlements

Varun Beverages Zambia Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Export sales

Payments received lor expon sales
Adjustment flor damaged stocks

Yarun Beverages Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Sales

Export receipt

Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase

Payments

Devyani Food International (pvt) Ltd - Fellow Subsidiary
Sales

Pal.rnents received for export sales

Grouo

Varun Beverages Ltd, India -Parent Company
Purchase ofspare parts and raw materials
Sales

Export receipt

Soltware license fee

Payments/ settlemonts

Varun Beverages Zamtria Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Export sales

Payments received for export sales
Adjustment for damaged stocks

Varun Beverages Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Sales

Export receipt

Lunarmech Technologies (Pvt) Ltd-Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase

Payments

Devyani Food lntern'ational (Pvt) Ltd
Sales

Payments received for export sales

Rs.

2,406,C)62,526

t8,367,447
2,068,440,000

3, I I 0,400
17) )q) 7ro

22,364,829

4,23',7.239

4,367,964

I 1,130,160

27 ,7 89,135

55,472,896

53,059.844

20,379,984

20,379,984

50,007,t12
55 q5R 57q

20,617,767

18,771,022

53,64 5,3 30

4.237 .239
4,367,961

I 1 ,1 30,1 60

52,005,655

5s,472,896

53.059.844

20,379.984

20,379.981

55.427,028

6 I ,378.495

20,617,'167

18.77 ) ,022

2019

Rs,

1.969,413,437

37 ,960,821
1 ,85 1 .1 46,600

3,007.200

43 0,590,840

85,343,787

5,705,1 87

5,7 0s,187

7 ,334,593
96,482,484

I14,273,372

I 20,490,345

2,t38,179

2',7 ,295,172
,? )oq r 7a

35, 1C5,3 3 7

29.424 ,792

139,046,282

5.705, I 87

5.705,187

7 ,334,593
171 ,302,077

114.273,372

120,490,345

2. r 38,1 79

27 ,295.172
)? 10i t rl

35.t05,337
29.424 _'192

-* tt, Castte Lane
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22. Related Party Transactions (Contd...)
Key management personnel inciude members of the Board ol Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and the
ultimate parent company, RJ Corp Lirnited, India.

'lhere was no col]]petlsatiott paid to key managenrent personnel during the yearother than the foliowing.

Company Group Company
Year Ended Year Ended year Ended
31.12.2020 31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Group
Year Ended
31.12.2019

Rs.

Directors emoluments 1.8,778,ss2 3?,790,760 16,958,455 26J2sJs6
18,778,ssz 32.790,760 t6,958.455 26.125.756

t1 Capital Commitments and Contingencies
The Department ollnland Revenue lias issued an assessment on income tax for the year ol-assessment 2013/14 and
2014/15 fot which future carried lorward loss will be reduced by Rs. 247,665,087 and Rs. 372,708,4g4 respectively. An
appea) has been filed against the assessment.

The Department oflnland Revenue has issued assessments in respect ofNation Building Tax filed lor the quarter ended
30.9.2016,31.3.2017,30.6.2017 & 31.3.201S vaiue lor Rs. 904,501, Rs. 976,706, ns :Ot,,lSZ & t,535,071 respecrively
and agalnst the assessments, appeals have been made to Commissioner General oflnland Revenue.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued notice of assessments for subsi<jiaN cornpanv lor the year ol assessment
201512016 lor inconre tax, vAT & NBT lor the Year 2015 and the amounrs are Rs. 35g,21g,446, Rs.1.005,445,128 & Rs.
i4i,345,604 respectively. The company has made appeals against the assessments to Corn:nissioner General of Inland
Revenue.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued an assessment in respect of income tax filed for the year of assessment
201312014 to ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd for Rs.9,550.038/- and the company has appealed against the assessment and
settlement is still pending.

The Department oflnland Revenue has issued an assessments in respect ofVAT for the year 20)3 (4 periods) on its
subsidiaq' OIe Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd for Rs.4 I 2.0 I 0,752 and the company has appealed against the assessment.

The Department oflnland Revenue has issued an assessments in respect ofNBT for the year 2013 (4 periods) on its
subsidiary Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd lor Rs.64,941,4341

Estimated amount ofthe contracts remaining to be executed on capital commitments not provided for (net ofadvance) rs
Rs 3.068,i I 1/-

Legal cases have been filed against the compan-v and againsr the subsidiary Ole Spring Bottlers (pvt) Ltd up to Rs.
1,741.0001- and Rs 60.000/- respectivel)' by emplovees and on product relared matters.

Apart from the above, there were no significant contingent liabilities and capital commitments as at the reporting period
end that would requtre adjustments to/or disclosure in the financial statements.

Events after the Reporting Period f,nd and Impact of COVID t9

24.1 Impact of COVID 19

The spread ofCovlD l9 has severely'impacted the many economies and businesses are being forced to cease or Iimjt their
operations.

The duration and impact olthe COVID-19 pandemrc remains unclear at this time. It is not possible to reliably estimate the
duration and severitl' ol the effbct of this pandemic. as well as rhe impact on the financial position and results of the
Company and Group lor future penods.

Horvever. based on management assessment the impact ma)'not severely affect the business ofthe Company and Group.

24.2 Events after the Reporting period End
There were no srgnificant events after the balance sheet date which require adjustments to or disclosures in the financial
staternents .

24.
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VARUN BEVERAGES LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITBD
DETAIL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2O2O

l. Administrative Expenses
Salaries - staff
Wages

Overtime

Allowances

Stalf training expenses

Bonus

Compensation

Tea and flooding
Medical expenses

Terminal gratuity
Employees' Provident Fund
Employees'Trust Fund

Lease rental

Foreign travelling
Exlernal auditor's remuneration
Internal auditor's remuneration
Telephone

Printing and stationery
Postage and telegrams

Stamp duty

Repairs and maintenance - vehicles
Depreciation - Building

- Furniture and fittings
- Oll'ice equipmenr
- Motor vehicle
- Computer & Software

Computer maintenance

I'ees and penalties

Motor vehicle insurance

Staff welfare

Rent and accommodation charges

Courier charges

Staff recruitment

Subscriptions and periodicals

Electricit_v charges

Staff insurance

Other allowance to staff
Legal and professional charges
Travelling and transport
Other taxes

Sundry balances wrifterr ofl
Water

Fuel

Company
Year Ended
31.12.2020

Rs.

31,429,697

t,314,344
1,7 43,864_

2,71t,557

-

4,236,940
1,059,784

4,469,964
l,r 17,488

2,880,000

547,500

t,6 I 1,30 I

r,558,259

212,962

.964,981-

48,425

29,963,038
844,223

2,985,355
13,716,560

2,158,344
12,353,378_

I 8,090 .
3,930,609

3,557,771

9t5,212

306,420
1,644,505

899,083

3,484,879
6,341,37 5

3,867,163

541,390

76,462 .

2,338,930
36,979

Group
Year Ended
31.12.2020

Rs.

54,t29,393
2,065,904
4,035,331

1,497,756

20,000

3,5 1 5,1 70

771,344
2,583,01I
4,740,283
1,958,109

7,352,946
1,83 8,233

787,534

2,683,330
1,558,259

r,655,3 I I

3,049,375
133,029.42

1g;,0,725

9,480
30,138,496

904,528
3,448,414

13,989,316

2,456,209
t3,362,718

12,650

353,090

4,188,329
3,557,771

915,212

306,420

1,971,284

1,237,656

3,484,879

6,341,37s

7,425,137

1,564,85 I

362,379
2,338,930

86,260

Company

Year Ended
31.12.20t9

Rs.

39,346,980
l,20l,l l5
6,017,566_

4,099,381

.

2,487,110
t,317,695
s,1t0,362
1,322,114

2,880,000

1,300,474

1,878,27 4

2,159,062

1,076,094

1,665,502

129,07 5

29,6s2,g2;

550,792

2,844,816

22,848,4s8
1,590,837

10,370,4 I 8

6,127,270

8,117 "145
27,389

32 1,880

1,495,654

1,277,504

3,043,34s
6,89t,640
4,416,754
1,156,570

1,359,517

51,7 6t
53,468

Group
Year Ended
31.12.2019

Rs.

57,057,669

I,785,1 93

8,322,167

1,025,765

5,825,771

1,367,9s9

3,013,772

2,020,549

7,338,947

1,879,261

9,699,442

2,863,405
2,159,062

2,954,913
4,894,202

154,355
??, q?s

371,612
30,243,268

725,964
3,385,993

24,059,980
2,245,733

l1,300,818

1,730,708

s82,243

7,215,050
9,719,195

27,389
32 1,880

2,250,742

1,502,418

3,043,345

6,891,640

7,461,491

2,405,037

1,986,0 I 8

51,7 6t
'70,703

- ) 131,688 - tlgsqt?
145,886.830 _ Drl,--IJ- --TZImp-aA- -T@fri
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2. SellinI and distribution expenses
Salaries - staff
Wages

Overtime

Bonus

Employees' Provident Fund
Employees'Trust Fund
Medical expenses

Conference and meeting expenses

Terminal gratuity
Telephone

Printing and stationery
Sales promotion and discounts
Leakage and breakages

Meals expenses

Other allowance to staff
Stafflncentive

Rent and accommodation expenses

Staff welfare

Travelling expenses

Transport expenses

Foreign travelling
Vehicle maintenance expenses

Motor vehicle fuel

Staff recruitment charges

Export handling charges

Contract outlet expenses

Bad debt/lmpairment

Depreciation - trade equipment
Trade equipment maintenance

t8,491,313 ts,548,55;
35,334,206 35,498,653
3,951,726 57,612,559

42,177,607 85,892,303
7.149,298 14,976,140

948,t62,275 t,357.032,424

Company
Year Ended
31.12.2020

Rs.

121,029,569

l 0,329, I 88

8,s62,160
11,170,097

19,070,723

4,767,677

5,611,732

286,212
4,08 r,020
2,323,322

998,473
397,064,808

9,230,769

14,043,403

42,247,754

43,735,240

6,682,625

3,078,166

5,98 1,208

84,704,088

2,093,488
24,980,7A3

18,985,699

Group
Year Ended
31.12.2020

Rs.

129,868,987

36,748,172

2t,t79,tst
11,797,606

20,333,139

5,083,281

5,830,354

301,937

4,430,834

2,323,322

998,473

584,277,282
25,270,195
17,322,91s

43,814,483

44,572,740

9,192,625

3,094,801

6,016,017

110,279,646

2,093,488
29,780,147
29,894,622

Company
Year Ended
31.12.2019

Rs,

t16,t39,719
10,956,722

12,199,277

14,4t 1,081

17,678,636

4,431,231

6,777,823

868,5 I 3

3,889,416

7,593,453
2,723,079

375,831,922

t2,733,788

43,632,536
37,958,597

5,879,620
3,676,688

10,796,789

73,390,708
1,134,959

3t,254,309
I 9,888,654

67,500
24,398,707

24,514,131

44,506,958

61,483,064
4,564,824

973,382,706

Group
Year Ended
31.12.2019

Rs.

126,206,4s9

47 ,651,457
29,220,955

15,392,359

18,774,411

4,760,334
7,208,201

868,5 I 3

4,288,917

7,593,453

2,723,079
488,708,734

t5,924,190
14,798,228

44,804,615

38,365,882

7,144,620

3,699,555

I 1,04t,135
106,819,363

1,134,959

4s,189,832

28,231,815

67,500
24,448,533

33,062;777

128,005,971

t00,808,772

7,436,30t
r,364,380,9 19
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Deloitte SJMS Associates
Chartered Accountants
No.1 T, Castle Lane
Colombo 04
Sri Lanka

Tel: +94 1 1 2580409, 54444A0
Fax: +94 11 2582452
www. d e lo itte. co m

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (pVT) LTD

Report on the Audit of the Financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Ole Springs Bottlers (Pvt) Ltd ("the Company") which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 3l December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SME).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described inthe Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenls section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka
(Code of Ethics) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the otirer information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. At the date of this auditor's report, other
information was not made available to us.

In conirection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SME), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis ofaccounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reas6nable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordanoe with Sri Lanka
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.



Deloitte
As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identifl and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifo our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and sigrificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identifu during our
audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information and explanations
that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the
Company.

SJMS ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Colombo
29 January 2021

W
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2O2O

Notes
Year ended

31.12.2020

Rs.

Year ended

31.12.2019

Rs.

7',|8,212,394

27,993,455

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Profit from operations

Finance and other costs

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit for the year

OJher comprehensive income / (expenses)
(Other comprehensive income witt nbt be reclassified
subsequently to pro/it or loss)

Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax on actuarial gain/loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

3,525,765,444 3,254,792,111

(2,755,791,709) (2.476-569.7 17\

769,973,736

27,554,545

5

6

(52,135,294) (00, t 75,30g)

(408,970,149) (390,998,215)

336,522,949 354,922,325

(122,199,269) (97,460,112)

214,323,590 267,462,214

(53,936,232) (12,590,977)

160,497,349 254,971,237

836,506

Q34,222)

(2,349,357)

657,540

161,099,632 2s3 180,420

The accounting policies and notes from 0l to 22 form an integral part of the financial statements.



Assets

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properfy

Capital work-in- progress

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Deposits and prepayments
Fixed deposits with banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Stated capital

Accumulated losses

Non current liabilities
Deposits payable

Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred tax liability

Current liabilities
Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related parties
Bank overdrafts

Total current lia bilities
Total equity and liabilities

oLE SPRTNGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2O2O

Notes

8

9

8.2

10

1l
t2
13

15

t6
7.2

t7
l8
20

l9

31.t2.2020
Rs.

1,576,367,030

379,000,000

1,954,367,030

315,942,952

321,947,207

12,397,794

209,029,617

14,724,639

873,841,097
2,829,209,129

902,972,070 902,972,070
(305,622,532) (466.712-164\

497,249,539 336,159,906

31.12.2019

Rs.

1,736,373,130

379,000,000

l,22g,2gl
2,115,602,411

173,647,955

372,117,277

19,442,950

120,075,292

9,531,250

694,914,513

_2,810AWL_

t4

137,353,029

38,046,947

70,473,562

136,101,961

38,796,262

16,403,109

3,1 16,950

250,396,190

1,787 ,091,234
44,500,777

245,873,539 191,291,232

191,204,042

157,172,319

1,936,165,292

109,424,135

2,292,965,796
2,810,416,924

2,095,095,051
2,828,209,129

statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies

for the preparation and presentation of these nnlciat statemenrs.

0//
Director
29 lanuary 2021

I certifo,nur rn.\
Act No. 07 of 2d)

\lvf



oLE SPRTNGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2O2O

Balance as at 01.01.2019

Redemption of preference shares
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive expense for the year

Deferred tax adjustment of revalued gain on land

Balance as at 31.12.2019

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31.12,2020

The accounting policies and notes from 0 I to 22 form an

(483,828,773) 494,557.677

Stated capital
Rs.

979,416,450

(175,544,390)

Accumulated
losses

Rs.

254,971,237

(1,690,917)

(236,063,811)

Total
Rs.

(175,544,390)

254,971,237

(1,690,917)

(236,063,811)

802,972,070 (466,712,165) 336,159,905

160,497,349

602,294

160,497,348

602,294

902,872,070

-

(305,622,532) 497.249.538

integral part of the financial statements.

11, Castle Lane,
Colorr:i-'c - 04.



oLE SPRTNGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2O2O

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit before interest and taxation

Adjustmentsfor:
Interest

Depreciation
Profit on disposal ofproperfy, plant and equipment
ESC Write off
Assets scrapped

Breakages

Bad debt write off
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
Provision for gratuity
Operating profit before working capital changes

Increase in inventories
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in deposits and prepayments
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables
Decrease in amounts due to related parties
Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid
Gratuity paid
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of properfy, plant and equipment
Fixed deposit with bank
Expenditure on capital working progress
Proceeds on sale ofproperfy, plant and equipment
Net cash flows utilized in investing actiyities

Cash flows from financing activities
Preference share redemption
Net movement in borrowings
Net cash flows utilized in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe year

Cash in hand and cash at bank

Note Year Ended year Ended
31.12.2020 31.12.20tg

Rs. Rs.

214,323,590 267,462,214

8 191,5A7 396 179,922,042
- (1,492,624)

6 61,221,747 17,516,645
6 24,993,566 18505898.67
6 7,024,723 17027714,2

1,132,397 995974.24
52,529,436 92,603,139

16 6,332,527 7,074,717
549,064,372 589,525,620

(149,219,721) (54,997,917)
(64,612,509) 450,395,731

7,045,066 4,607,991
94,465 ,041 (213 ,637 ,7 17)

(49,084,058) (374,409,122\
387,659,190 401,584,576

7.1 _ (5,6g2,192)
16 (6,235,336) (3,754,619)

391,422,954 392,147,775

8 (45,265,592)
(88,953,33 5)

8.2

(137,008,s37)
( I 03,003,000)

(1,229,291)

5,975,000
(235,365,818)

_ (175,544,379)
(t78,087,192) fl6.168.668)
(t78,087,192) 0 91.7t3.047\

69,116,7 45 (34,93 I ,090)
(98,892,885) (63.961.7ss\

\29.776,138) (98-89r-88.s)

(t34,219,917)

14,724,639 9,531,250
(44,500,777)(44.500,777) ( 109,424, t35)
(29,776,138) (98,892SS5)(98,992,995)

Bank overdraft

--_____:__j-_-_ 

-
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oLE SPRTNGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO TIIE T'INANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2O2O

General
Reporting entity
ole Springs Bottlers (P\4) Ltd (the "company") is a limited liability company incorporated anddomiciled in Sri Lanka' The registered office ana the principle place tr ur.ir".. is located at 140,Low LevelRoad, Embulga*a, Ranala.

Principal activities and nature of operations
The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, selling and distribution of non-alcoholic
beverages and purified drinking water.

Parent and ultimate parent enterprises
The Varun Beverages Lanka (private) Limited is the parent
parent undertaking is RI corporation Ltd. Intermediate parent
Lanka and India respectively

Date of authorization for issue
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 January 2021.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements.have been prepar:q on a going concern basis and in compliance with the SriLanka Accounting Standard for Small and Mediuii-si"zed Entities (SLFRS for stuesl laid down byThe Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

All values presented in the financial statements are in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.) Rounded to the nearestrupee. The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis.

The previous period figures and phrases have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform tocurrent year presentation. The current year figures cannot be directly .o.npu."J ,r,iith comparativefigures in relation to Statetement of changes in Jquity due to the differen". ln r"fo.tlng periods.

Foreign currency and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan rupees, which is the company,s functionar andpresentation currency' All financial information presenied iras been rounded io ir," nearest rupee,unless otherwise stated.

2.3 Revenue
2.3.1 Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair'value of the consideration received orreceivable, net of returns and allowances. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks andrewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, the associated costs and possible return ofgoods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

2.3.2 Interest income '

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

1.

I.l

1.2

1.3

company and the company,s ultimate
and ultimate parent incorporated in Sri

1.4

)
2.1

'l ',



2.3.3 Other gains and losses
Net gains and losses of a revenue lature arising from disposal of plant and equipment and other non-current assets are'accounted for in the income statement aftei deducting from the proceeds ondisposal, the carrying amount of such assets and the related selling 

"rp"rr".-'
2.3.4 Rent income and other revenues

Rent income and other revenues are recognized on an accrual basis.

2,4 Expenditure recognition
Expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on the basis of a direct association
between the cost incurred and the earning of speiific items of income. All expenditure incurred in therunning of the business and in maintaining thi property, pla-nt and equlp*"ri in a state of efficiency
have been charged to revenue in arriving ai the profit/ (iorr) ro, the year.'

,< Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all therisks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other leases are classified asoperating leases.

Rights to assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the company atthe fairvalue of
th^e leased properfy (or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the commencement
of the lease' The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
:f tF lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remainiig balance of theliability' Finance charges are deducted in measuring profit or loss. Assets held under finance leasesare included in property, plant and equipment, and Jepreciated and assessed ror impairment losses inthe same way as owned assets. Rentais payable under operating leases ur. 

"hurt"d-il-pront 
or loss ona straight-line basis over tie term of the relevant lease.

2.6 Borrowing cost
AII borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred

2.7. Income tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in theincome statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which
case it is recognized in equity

Current tax
The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditures as reported in thefinancial statements and computed in accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act. No 24of2017.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in thefinancial statements and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred taxliabilities are recognised for all temporary1iff"."nc", that are 

"*p"it"d 
tL increase taxable profit inthe future' Deferred tax assets are recognise-d for all temporary differences that areexpected to reducetaxable profit in.the future, and any unused tax losses or unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets aremeasured at the highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated future taxable profit, is morelikely than not to be rpcovered.

IX"^:,"::"y.:g:T::i:_:f -q"i:1.9 
tax. assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to

*"""lll^"*:T::r,:m:::T:n,, of 
.p,yr" taxable profits. Any adjustm"rt. urJ .".ogri."a in profit or

:?1.;^"-"^Tff1,9f,:i,:.rlated 1t 
the tax rates thit are"*p""i"J if-;dt ;; ;h; ;;;ff;;;;(#ili

of the periods in which it expects the defered tax asset to U*."utirei; rh.';;f#;';"1'ltili;iability to besettled, on the basis of tax rates that have been enacted or substanti
reporting period. ,1.i::

:nacted by the end of the



2.8 Stated capital
2.8.1 Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.9 Tangibte assets
2.9.1 Property, plant and equipment

Properfy, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and anyaccumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable tobringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of tperating in tr,"manner intended by management.

The company ud1. to,the carrying amount of an item of properfy, plant and equipment the cost ofreplacing parts of such an item when that cost is incurrid ir ur" r"ptu.ement part is expected toprovide incremental future benefits to the company. The carrying amount of tire replaced purt i.derecognized' All other repairs and maintenance are tharged to irofrt or loss during the year in whichthey are incurred. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation o-n othei assets is charged so as to allocate thecost of assets less their residual value over thiir estimated useful lives, usint tie straight-line methodis as follows:

Rate (%)

25.00
10.00
14.29
t2.50
25.00
3.34
4.7 5

4.75
12.s0

The assets' residual values, useful .lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjustedprospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant crranle since the last reporting
date' An asset's carrying amount is written down immediatef to its recoveiable amount if the asset,scarrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognized within 'other gains/ (losses) --net' in the ltatement orcomprehensive income.

2.9.2 Investment property
Investment property, which is a property held to earn rentals and/ or for capital appreciation ismeasured at cost including transaction. cost. Subsequent to the initial recoganition, investmentproperty is measured at cost less any impairment loises. The investment property consist of afreehold land which is occupied by the parent company.

2.9.3 Capitalwork-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is caried- at cost. In respect of Projects under construction, incidental andattributable expenses (net of incidental income) including lnterest ;rp;;;;. is carried as part ofincidental expenditure during construction to be allocated in majo. ir*ourute project assets otherthan land and infrastructurar facilities, on commissioning of the project.

2.9.4 Impairment of non-ftnancial assets

*:T:j::T:*,.1':,..T:1""y;13',lll1 ::lili:,t,.investment properry and inrangibre assets are
4rr trrrPolllllgllL

1",::^rr:1"::,::: :l*lt:i "ll"*ble impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (orgroup of related assets) is estimated urrd 
"o*puied 

with its ca.rying;;;: ;';;-.ffi;;
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amounf is reduced to its est_i

Assets

Computers
Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles
Trade equipment
Office equipment
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Tools and equipment
Bottles and crates

an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
amount, and



2.9.4 Impairment of non-financial assets _ (Contd..)
If an impairment loss for a non-financial asset other than goodwill subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increasid to the reviset estimate of its recoverable
amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impai.meniioss
recognized forthe asset(or group of related assets) in priorperiods. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

3.1 Financial instruments
Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at the transaction price. All sales are made on the
basis of normal credit terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. at tfr" end of each reporting
period, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there isany objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. If so, an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the transaction price (including transaction costs). Tradepayables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not beai interest. Interest bearingliabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

3.2.1 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity
The cost of the d9!1ed benefit plan,.the gratuity obligation, is determined using the projected unitcredit method which involves making assumptions 

-regarding 
discount rates and 

-future 
salary

increases' Due to the long-term nature of these plurr, such estimates are subject to uncertainty. ail
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.2.2 Defined contribution plan - EpF & ETF
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixedcontributions.into a separate entity and will have no legal oi consftuctive obligation to pay furtheramounts' obligations for-contributions to defined contribution plans are recogn-ized u. un 

"*pioy".benefit expense in the Income Statement as in the periods during which ."*i"", are rendeied'by
employees.

Employees' Provident Fund
The company and employees contribute 12Yo and 8%o respectively of the salary of each employee to
the approved Provident Fund.

Employees' Trust Fund
The company contributes 3olo of the salary of each employee to the Employees, Trust Fund.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to makethe sale' The costs incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and condition, areaccounted for as follows:

Raw materials - On actual cost on a weighted average basis.

Finished goods - Valued at standard cost basis

other inventories - on actual cost on a weighted average basis

J.J



3.4Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the company's financial statements require management to make judgments, estimates andassumptions that effect the reported amounts of revenue, 
"rp.nr"., assets and liabilities and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities at the reporting date. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimatesare recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised or in ttre period of revision and futu;e p".i,rdr,only ifthe revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustrnent to the carryingamounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year aredisclosed below.

a) Defined benefit plans
The carrying value of defined benefit plans is determined using a formula which considers theactuarial assumption. This involves making various assumptioris which .ry alir", from actualdevelopments in the future. These includelhe determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, etc. Due to-the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and their longterm nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to chlng:es in thlse assumptions. Allassumptions are reviewed at each reporting daie. The assumptions used in the valuation and
sensitivities there on are disclosed in note 16.



Other income
Scrap sales

Rent income

Profit on sales offixed asset
Exchange gain

Interest income

Profit before tax is stated after charging all expenses including the following:
Personnel cost

Defined contribution plan costs - EpF &ETF
Provision for gratuity
Bonus

Depreciation

Auditor's fees - Audit related

Finance and other costs
Bank overdraft interest
Bank charges

Exchange loss

Unclaimable ESC
Assets scrapped

Breakages

Loan interest

Interest charge on gratuity

12,273,685 7,888,886
2,890,000 2,880,000

- 1,492,624
_ 2,lg4,g4g

12,400,860 t3,447,097
27,554,545 27.883.455

2020

Rs.
2019

Rs.

s5,832,848

9,749,193

2,209,547

3,995,275

181,507,396

1,072,029

54,539,413

9,259,256

2,164,411
5,3 16,353

179,922,042

985,13 I

4,443,950 7,361,011
2,059,044 1,166,233
7,912,110

61,221,747 17,516,645
24,993,566 18,505,899
7,024,723 17,027,714

10,521,149 21,908,473
4,122,980 3,974,137

122,199,269 87.a0..|1-.!_

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Rs. Rs.

54,070,453 6,2s1,2s5
(234,222) 6s7,s40

- 5,692,192

_2,836,e_ __!z,s%gn

5.

7.2 Reconciliation of the total tax charge
A reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the statutory tax rate is as follows:

7. Taxation
7.1 Income tax expense i (benefit)

Deferred tax expense / (benefit)
Deferred tax charge against other comprehensive income

Ihcome tax- previous year

Accounting profit / (loss) as per income tax computation
Tax at the applicable tax rate of28yo
Allo'rvable credits

Non - deductible expenses

Interest income - Gross
Tax loss claimed

Taxable profit for the year ofassessment

Tax expense at 28o/o

2020

Rs.

2019

Rs.

214,323,590 267,462,214

(82,052,310) (255,492,;n)
314,481,379 308,526,106
t2,4oo,g60 13,447,0g7

(459,t53,509) (330.942.s06\

-------



Deferred tax

Balance as at I January 2019

Recognized in changes in equity
Recognized in profit or loss

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Recognized in profit or loss

Balance as at 3l December 2020

Deferred tax has been calculated at
enacted as ofthe year end.

Property,
plant

&equipment
Rs.

(253,594,374)

(236,063,911)

5, I 07,005

(484,55 1, I g0)

Retirement Unused tax
benefit losses

obligation
Rs. Rs.

12,642,524 466,863,807

(1,782,371)

Impairment
of trade

Rs.

Tofal

Rs.

225,911,957

(236,063,81 l)

7.3

I 0,960, I 53

(9,575,889) (6,251,255)

457 ,287 ,918 ( I 6,403, r 09)

36,274,455 38,299,024 (207,008) (128,436,925) (54,070,453)
(44s,276,72, --3BrB :T@ 3rs$so,r% @

the rate of 28o/o which is the future taxrate applicable to the entity and substantially



8. Property, plant and equipment
Freehold property, plant and equipment (Note g.l)

8.1 Freehold property, plant and equipment

Cost

31.L2.2020
Rs.

1,576,367,030

1,576,367,030

3t.t2.2019
Rs.

1,736,373,130

1,736,373,130

Land

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Office equipment

Fumiture & fittings
Computers

Trade equipment

Motor vehicles

Bottles and crates

Total

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Office equipment

Furniture and fittings
Computers

Trade equipment
Motor vehicles

Bottles and crates

Total

Net book value

8.2 Capitalwork-in-progress

109,647,731 ( I g,661,346)

181,507 ,396 fl 8.661.346)

(43,654,g1;)
(43,654,912)

Transfers

Rs.

( 1,902,010)

(1,902,010)

-

2,674,992,955

-

Disposals/ Balance as at
write off 31.12.2020

Rs. Rs.

56,969,699

197,947,619

2,125,917

4,305,599

4,329,593

149,557,701

25,259,997

658,1 20,9 I 0

1,099,5 15,925

1,576,367,030

-

Balance as at
31.12.2020

Rs.

Balance as at
01.01.2020

Rs.

594,314,290

144,027,196

491,3 g3,g l0
2,443,353

4,754,016

4,616,996
347,997,747

29,577,550

1,063,027,956

_2,672,0Aw

Balance as at
01.01.2020

Rs.

53,201,510

174,913,016

1,61 1,409

4,l7l,5gg
3,951,490

105,943,005

24,043,334

568,134,424

_ 935,669,774

1,736,373,130

Balance as at
01.01.2020

Rs.

l,22g,2gl

Additions/
transfers

Rs.

2,162:Ig;
634,337

27,959

55,000

2,949,314

40,666,059

_:46,494,963

Depreciation
charged

Rs.

3,?6g,lgg
23,034,603

514,509

134,011

479,093

43,714,696
1,215,564

Disposals/ Balance as at
write off 31.12.2020

Rs. Rs.

594,314,290

144,027,196

493,546,006

3,077,690

4,791,974

4,671,996

350,947,061

29,577,550

1,060,039,101

Additions

Rs.

572,729Plant and machinery t

l,22g,2gl 572,729



9.

2020
Rs.

379,000,000

2019

Rs.

379,000,000

Investment property
Land

10. Inventories
Finished goods

Raw materials

Chemicals and fuel
Spare parts

11. Trade and other receiyabtes
Trade debtors

Less: Impairment of trade debtors

Other receivables

Receivable from CGIR - ESC & Advance tax payment
Staffloans and festival advances

12. Deposits and prepayments
Security deposits and prepayments

13. Fixed deposits with bank
Fixed deposit - Commercial Bank of Ceylon pLC
Fixed deposit - Nations Trust Bank pLC
Fixed deposit - Hatton National Bank pLC

434,593,190 371,507,379
(136,782,230) (84.253.794\

297,910,950 297,253,594
9,379,029 7,9g4,027

15,307,692 76,551,147
350,536 429,519

321,947,207 372.117.277, ,

12,397,794 19,442,950
12,397,794 19.442.850

73,542,193

196,469,676

10,342,909

45,499,174

315.842.852

--

29,942,127

93,659,605

7,914,350
43,231,772

173,647.855

4,011,459
I13,729,665

91,297,493

4,011,459
116,063,923

209,029,617 _ 120,075,292

14. Stated capital
Fully paid ordinary shares
Fully paid Class "A" ordinary shares

No. of shares

126

80,297,091
1,260

802,970,910

_902,972,070

1,260

902,970,910

802.872.070

-
Deposit payables 

t
Deposits against assets

Dealership deposits
112,169,450

25,193,579
110,176,126

25,925,735

15.

137 .353.029

-

136,101,961



16. Retirement benefit obligations
Balance at the beginning of the year
Gratuity charge for the year

Present value of employee transferred
Interest charge for the year

Payments made during the year
Actuarial (gain) / loss

Balance at the end ofthe year

The following assumptions were used

Expected future salary increment
Discount rate

Retirement age

Employee turnover ratio

17. Borrowings
Commercial Bank of ceylon pLC

18. Trade and other payables
Trade payables

Stamp duty
Excise duty
Economic Service Charge

, Value Added Tax
Withholding Tax
Accrued and other pplables

19. Bank overdraft

Securities pledged

2020
Rs.

39,796,262

2,209,547

4,122.980
(6,235,336)

(836,506)

38,046,947

in determining the post employment benefit obligation.

6%

6.75%

55 years

3%

2020

Rs.

165,049,499

30,600

20,665,499

3,191,896

2019

Rs.

33,117,907

2,164,411

936,169

3,97 4,137

(3,754,6t9)
2,348,357

38,796,262

9%

10.63%

55 years

)70

3,116,950 191,204,042

_i.t t 6.850 tqt ,o4 04,

17.1 Securities pledged for short term loans and bank overdrafts

Name of the bank uoO ,ltr." of the security

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC General terms and conditions relating to short term loan / import loan
and Corporate guarantee of Varun Beverages Lanka (pvt) Ltd.

Standard Charted Bank Primary concurrent mortgage over stock and receivable for Rs 450Mn,
Located at No 140, Low Level Road, Embulgama Ranala.

61,448,716

2019

Rs.

64,262,039

41,350

40,63 g, 1 gg

2,572,309
12,507,933

141,327

37,009,279

_108,4r4,!35

250,3 86,190lI- I;s,n'f-ht" ).WW
for overdraft facilities have been disclosed in note 17.1.

44,500,777



20. Related party transactions
20.1 Identification of related parties

Related parties include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority andresponsibility for planning directing and controlling the activities of the company.

During the year, Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria, Mr. Amit Joshi, Mr. Achal Kumar, were the directors of the
company.

31.12.2020

Rs.

31.12.2019

Rs.

20.2 Amount due to related parties
Varun Beverages Lanka (p\rt) Ltd (parent)
Varun Beverages Ltd India (Intermediate parent)

20.3 The company entered into the following transactions with the
term basis.

1,780,017,253 1,936,165,292
7,063,991 _

1.787.081,234 1.836.165.292

related parties on agreed commercial

Varun Beverages Lanka (pvt) Ltd (parent)
Purchase ofgoods
Sale ofraw rnaterials
Settlements lpayment
Discounts and expenses reimbursements
Land lease income

Varun Beverages Ltd - India (Intermediate parent)
Purchase of finished goods and raw materials
Settlements

Lunarmech Technotogies (pvt) Ltd. (Affitiate)
Purchase goods

Sefflements

20.4 Remuneration to key management personnel
Key Management personnel include members of the Board of Directors of the Company and its related

31,.12.2020

Rs.

2,406,062,526

18,367,447

2,06g,440,000
372,292,719

3,1 10,400

3 1,290,501

24,216,520

5,419,916
5,4lg,gl6

31.12.2019

Rs.

7,969,413,437

37,960,921
1,851,146,600

430,590,940

3,007,200

53,702,495

74,919,593

companies.

Compensation paid to key management personnel
December 2019 Rs. 9,167,301/=).

during the year is Rs. 14,012,2091: (year ended 3l



21. Capital commitments and contingencies
There were no any capital commitments as at the reporting date.

Legal cases filed against the company up to Rs. 60,000/- for product related matters.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued notice of assessments to the company for the year ofassessment 2015/2016 for income tax, vAT & NBT for the year 20lS amounting to Rs. 35g,21g,446, Rs.7'005'445'128 & Rs' 141,345,604 respectively. The company has made appeals igainst these assessments
to Commissioner General of Inland Revenue.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued an assessment for income tax filed for the year of assessment
201312014 for Rs'9,550,038/-. The company has appealed against the assessment and settlement is stillpending at the appeal commission.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued assessments for vAT for the year 20l3for Rs. 412,010,752
and the company has appealed against the assessments and is pending at Tax Appeal commission.

The Department of Inland Revenue has issued assessments for NBT for the year 2013 for Rs. 64,941.434.

22. Events after the Reporting period End and Impact of covlD 19
22.1 Events after the reporting period end

There were no significant events after the balance sheet date which require adjustments to or disclosures inthe financial statements.

22.2 lmpact of COVID t9
The spread of covlD 19 has severely impacted the many economies and businesses are being forced tocease or limit their operations.

The duration and impact of the covlD-Ig pandemic remains unclear at this
reliably estimate the duration and severity of the effect of this pandemic, as
financial position and results of the company for future periods.

time. It is not possible to
well as the impact on the

However, based on management assessment the impact may not severely affect the business of thecompany.
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OLE SPRINGS BOTTLERS (PVT) LTD
DETAILED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2O2O

1. Revenue

Local sales

Export sales

Trade discounts

Nation Building Tax
Excise duty

2. Cost of sales

Finished goods at the beginning ofthe year

Finished goods purchase during the year

Factory cost transferred (Schedule 2.1)

Finished goods at the end orrn. r.u.

2.1 Cost of finished goods manufactured
Raw materials at the beginning of the year

Raw materials purchase during the year
Raw materials at the end of the year
Raw materials consumed during the year
Production overheads (Schedule 2.2)

29,942,127 26,720,339
2,159,939,395 1,746,525,519

641,552,390

2,929,333,901

(73,542,193) (28,942.127)

_2J55Jgl J\g 2,476,569,717

2020

Rs.

3,920,541,277

2,726,677
(147,959,679)

3,675,409,276

(149,643,93t)

_3,525J65A44

2019

Rs.

3,645,553,973

1,933,944
(133,793,697)

3,513,694,119

(43,523,097)
(215,388,922)

3,254,792.111

-

732,265,996

2,505,511,944

93,659,605

453,339,959

59,421,167

471,029,750
(186,468,676) (93.659.60s)
360,530,799 436,791,312
281,021,592 295,474,674
641,552,390 732,265,996



24,293,734

14,270,71I

12,465,491

2,464,153
159,251

2,953,949

713,497
gl,964

252,751

96l,40g
7 t2,g7l

15,420,151

797,340
2,895,042

26,504,332

1,1 g3,gg2

1,639,209

7,164,256

67,ggg
3,592,731

23,034,603

51,451

73,706

942,907

lg0,22g
109,647,731

5,916,947

23,641,037

20t9
Rs.

26,761,994

14,053,903

9,503,241

2,609,695

657,733

3,239,917

809,729

2,914,549

393,976
1,062,056

4,230,696
23,191,340

2,366,472

2,027,792

2l ,011 ,126
899,522

1,350,956

7 ,57 5,001

196,129

3,160,620

23,063,265

19,141

327,264

605,499

327,447

10g,g1g,gg7

9,209,574

25,549,159

s69,212

2020
Rs.

2,2 Production overheads
Salaries

Wages

Overtime
Bonus

Allowance
Employees' Provident Fund
Employees'Trust Fund
Staff welfare
Medical
Terminal gratuity
Fuel

Chemicals

Lab consumables

Staff uniforms
Electricity
Telephone

General insurance

Security charges

Motor vehicle fuel
Depreciation - Factory building

- Plant and machinery
- Office equiBment
- Furniture and fittings
- Motor vehicles and forklift
- Computers
- Bottles and crates

Building repairs and maintenance
Equipment maintenance

Loading charges
50.483

281.02t.592 295"474.674

.# 
t1, Castle Lane'
CcicnlLo - u1:^



3. Administrativeexpenses
Salaries - staff
Wages

Overtime

Staff training expenses

Allowance
Bonus

Employees' Provident Fund
Employees'Trust Fund
Medical
Staff welfare
Terminal gratuity
Tea and food
Compensation

External auditor's remuneration
Electricity

Telephone

Printing and stationery
Postage and telegrams
Stamp duty
Depreciation - Building

- Furniture and fittings
- Office equip.Snent

- Motor vehicle
- Computer

Computer maintenance
Fees and penalties

Motor vehicle insurance
Rent

Foreign travelling
Consultancy fees

Legal fees

Subscriptions and periodicals
Water

Motor vehicle maintenance and repairs
Motor vehicle fuel
Other tax

Travelling and transport

240,034
2,831,474

726,500

326,779

49,291

9,490
2,131,699

285,917

1,023,461
52,135,294

1,248.467
60. I 75.308

2020
Rs.

22,699,696

751,560
2,291,467

20,000

1,497,756

803,613

2,gg2,gg2

720,746

503,343

257,720

898,325

2,593,011

771,344
1,072,029

338,572

1,442,349

2,094,394

133,029

132,300

175,459

60,305

463,059

272,756

297,965
1,009,340

12,650

335,000

2019

Rs.

17 ,710,699
584,079

2"304,601

32,790
1,025,765

1,726,390

2,229,595

557,14',7

526,662

1,055,000

702,953

1,367,959

985,1 3 I

224,914
I,g7g,g l g

3,229,700

154,355

203,950

590,344

175,172

541,176

1,211,522

654,996

930,400

1,730,709

592,243

1,602,050
g,3gg,g6g

1,903,237

1,241,500

755,099

17,235

371,612

1,195,912

626,501



2019

Rs.

2020
Rs.

Selling and distribution expenses
Salaries - staff
Wages

Staff welfare
Allowance
Overtime
Bonus

Staff incentives

Employees' Provident Fund
Employees'Trust Fund
Terminal gratuity
Medical
Motor vehicle fuel
Freight expenses

Tea and food

Discount and claims
Rent expenses

Conferences and meetings expenses
Leakage breakage

Bad debt write off
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
Motor vehicle maintenance and repairs
Transport charges

Contract outlet expenses

Trade equipment maintenance
Travelling
Depreciation - trade equipment

8,839,419

26,419,994

16,635

1,566,729

12,616,ggl
627,509

837,500

1,262,415

315,604

349,914
219,622

10,909,923

57,239

3,279,512
187,212,474

2,510,000

15,725

16,039,426

7,132,397

52,528,436

4,799,444

25,57 5,559
164,447

7,926,942

34,909

10,066,740

36,694,735

22,967

1,172,079

l7 ,421,677
gg1,27g

407,295

1,095,77 5

329,103

399,501

430,379

9,343,161

49,926

2,064,440
112,976,912

1,265,0-00

15,924,190
gg5,g74

82,603,139

13,935,522

33,429,654

9,549,646

2,871,479

244,345
43,714,696 39,325,709

409,970,149 390,999,215



AS at
31.12.2020

Rs.

AS at
3t.12.2019

Rs.5. Cash at bank and cash in hand
Cash at bank

Margin money Commercial Bank of Ceylon
People's Bank - Hanwella
Hatton National Bank - Kaduwela
Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch 3
Nations Trust Bank pLC

People's Bank - International
Cash in hand

6. Bank overdrafts
Standard Chartered Bank - Fort Branch 3
Commercial Bank of Ceylon

7. Accrued and other payables
Electricity
Other payables

Auditor's remuneration

Telephone payable

Transpor"t

Staff incentive

177,000

2,309,979
11,265,709

247,896
26,194

1,669,650

1,737,163

4,242,201

506,461

493,974

28,434
854,467697.880

14,'124,639 9,531,25A

947,049
43.553.728

44,500,777

-

108,424,135

108.424.13s

2,349,932

57,593,546

413,439

20,000

871,900

200,000

35,299,994

350,000

I33,000
I ,097,3 g5

150,000
61,449,716 3',7,009,279

# 11, Castle Lane,
Celarnl:c - 04.

Te!:0115 444 400
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VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A 

Bouskoura Casablanca  

 
 
 
 

GENERAL REPORT OF AUDIT  

For the year ended 31 December 2020 

 

 

 

Shareholders, 

 

Accordance with the terms of our accord by your General Meeting, we audited the financial 

statements of the company VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A attached, which 

comprise the balance sheet and the statement of income and expenses for the year ended 31 

December 2020. These financial statements show an amount of equity to 290.224.892,16 MAD 

and include a loss of -19.088.753,37 MAD. 

 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these states synthesis, in 

accordance with accepted accounting standards in Morocco. This responsibility includes, 

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

summary statements having no abnormality significant, and the accounting estimates that are 

reasonable in the circumstances. 

 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the standards in Morocco. These standards require us to 

comply with ethical requirements, plan and realize the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

whether the financial statements do not contain material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the summary statements. The choice of procedures depend on the judgment of 

the listener, as well as risk assessment that states synthetic material misstatement. In making 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity on the 

compilation and presentation of summary statements to define procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of it. 

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the summary statements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to our opinion. 

 

Opinion on the financial statements 
We certify that the statements referred to in the first paragraph above are regular and sincere 

and fairly, in all material respects, fairly the result of operations for the year then ended, the 

financial position and assets of the company VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A at 31 

December 2020 in accordance with accounting standards admitted in Morocco. 



   Ahmed CHAHBI 
Expert Comptable DPLE 

  Commissaire aux comptes 

421, Bd Abdelmoumen 4
ème

 étage N° 16 Casablanca Maroc 

 Tél : 00 212 522 861 761    Fax :00 212 522 862 762  E-mail : achahbi@gmail.com 
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Specific verifications and information  
We have also performed the specific verifications required by law and we ensured including 

the consistency of the information given in the management report to shareholders with the 

financial statements of the company. 

 

 

Ahmed CHAHBI 

Casablanca January  23, 2021   
 



   Ahmed CHAHBI 
Expert Comptable DPLE 

  Commissaire aux comptes 

421, Bd Abdelmoumen 4
ème

 étage N° 16 Casablanca Maroc 

 Tél : 00 212 522 861 761    Fax :00 212 522 862 762  E-mail : achahbi@gmail.com 
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Tableau n°1

BILAN  ( ACTIF )

Société VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A

ACTIF

Brut Amortissements Net AmortissementsNet

et Provisions 31/12/2020et Provisions31/12/2019

IMMOBILISATION EN NON VALEUR (a) 4 930 079,38 2 629 905,12 2 300 174,26 3 286 190,14

Frais préliminaires

Charges à repartir sur plusieurs exercices 4 930 079,38 2 629 905,12 2 300 174,26 3 286 190,14

Primes de remboursement des obligations -                               

A

IMMOBILISATIONS INCORPORELLES (b) 35 941,00 32 934,26 3 006,74 9 117,77

C

Immobilisations en recherche et développement

T

Brevets, marques, droits et valeurs similaires 35 941,00 32 934,26                  3 006,74 9 117,77

I Fonds commercial

F Autres immobilisations incorporelles -                               

IMMOBILISATIONS CORPORELLES (c) 651 077 730,08 266 963 319,86 384 114 410,22 395 626 100,10

Terrains 53 561 350,00 53 561 350,00 53 561 350,00

I Constructions 64 030 120,58 21 923 789,34 42 106 331,24 43 733 019,01

M

Installations techniques, matériel et outillage 502 748 104,01 224 515 285,24 278 232 818,77 291 152 921,71

M

Matériel de transport 19 241 555,46 16 549 252,13 2 692 303,33 4 854 416,21

O

Mobiliers, matériel de bureau et aménagements divers 6 437 212,24 3 974 993,15 2 462 219,09 2 324 393,17

B

Autres immobilisations corporelles

I Immobilisations corporelles en cours 5 059 387,79 5 059 387,79

L IMMOBILISATIONS FINANCIERES (d) 2 139 412,28 2 139 412,28 1 958 522,28

I Prêts immobilises

S Autres créances financières 2 139 412,28 2 139 412,28 1 958 522,28

E

Titres de participation -                               

Autres titres immobilises

ECARTS DE CONVERSION - ACTIF (e) 25 798 261,43

Diminution des créances immobilisées

Augmentation des dettes de finance 25 798 261,43

TOTAL  I   ( a+b+c+d+e) 658 183 162,74 269 626 159,24 388 557 003,50 426 678 191,72

STOCKS (f) 64 342 248,52 64 342 248,52 68 947 716,58

Marchandises 3 957 691,84 3 957 691,84 10 109 503,50

Matières et fournitures consommables 38 223 692 -                               38 223 692,13 41 001 461,88

A
Produits en cours

C
Produits interm. et produits resid.

T Produits finis 22 160 865 22 160 865 17 836 751

I CREANCES DE L'ACTIF CIRCULANT (g) 116 917 461,81 7 473 481,29 109 443 980,52 110 577 636,93

F Fournis. débiteurs, avances et acomptes 8 165 201,03 8 165 201,03 1 041 014,02

Clients et comptes rattaches 79 289 009,01 7 473 481,29 71 815 527,72 82 496 445,60

C

Personnel 918 773,31 918 773,31 873 708,46

I Etat 10 783 443,17 10 783 443,17 8 579 440,78

R

Comptes d'associés

C

Autres débiteurs 1 127,18 1 127,18 7 482,56

U

Compte de régularisation actif 17 759 908,11 17 759 908,11 17 579 545,51

L

TITRES ET VALEUR DE PLACEMENT (h)

A
N

ECART DE CONVERSION - ACTIF (i) 214 017,59 214 017,59 461 222,09

T

( Eléments circulants )

TOTAL  II   ( f+g+h+i) 181 473 727,92 7 473 481,29 174 000 246,63 179 986 575,60

TRESORERIE - ACTIF 4 156 251,19 4 156 251,19 2 992 531,74

Chèques et valeurs à encaisser 3 163 967,46 3 163 967,46 2 477 509,76

Banques, T.G & CP 958 359,92 958 359,92 465 202,43

Caisses, régies d'avances et accréditifs 33 924 33 923,81 49 819,55

TOTAL  III 4 156 251,19 4 156 251,19 2 992 531,74

TOTAL GENERAL  I+II+III 843 813 141,85 277 099 640,53 566 713 501,32 609 657 299,06

T
  R

  E
  S

  O
  R

  . 

EXERCICE CLOS LE 31/12/2020

EXERCICE



Tableau n°1

BILAN ( PASSIF )
Société VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A

EXERCICE CLOS LE 31/12/2020

PASSIF Exercice Exercice

31/12/2019 31/12/2018

CAPITAUX PROPRES

Capital social ou personnel (1) 869 638 000,00      714 212 000,00     

moins: Actionnaires, capital souscrit non appele    dont vers..

Moins : Capital appelé 

Moins : Dont versé 

F Prime d'emission, de fusion, d'apport

I Ecarts de reevaluation

N Reserve legale

A Autres reserves

N Report à nouveau (2) -560 324 354,47 -535 658 958,45

Résultat net en instance d'affectation  (2)

C Resultat net de l'exercice (2) -19 088 753,37 -24 665 397,02

E TOTAL DES CAPITAUX PROPRES (a) 290 224 892,16 153 887 644,53

M CAPITAUX PROPRES ASSIMILES (b)

E Subventions d'investissement

N Provisions reglementees

T CAPITAUX PROPRES ASSIMILES (Ajout)  - 

P DETTES DE FINANCEMENT (c) 108 751 514,68 225 686 657,20

E Emprunts obligataires

R Autres dettes de financement 108 751 514,68 225 686 657,20

M DETTES DE FINANCEMENT (Ajout)  - 

A PROVISIONS DURABLES POUR RISQUES ET CHARGES (d) 25 798 261,43

N Provisions pour charges

E Provisions pour risques -                             25 798 261,43       

N ECARTS DE CONVERSION - PASSIF (e) 5 859 676,91

T Augmentation des creances immobilisees

Diminution des dettes de financement 5 859 676,91          

TOTAL  I  ( a+b+c+d+e ) 404 836 083,75 405 372 563,16

P DETTES DU PASSIF CIRCULANT (f) 128 303 254,47 180 994 353,80

A Fournisseurs et comptes rattaches 87 061 452,51 112 267 170,64

S Clients crediteurs, avances et acomptes 9 717 740,87 9 617 024,50

S Personnel 208 381,85 184 233,85

I Organismes sociaux 1 985 484,16 2 358 664,36

F Etat 21 111 781,99 23 043 324,34

Comptes d'associes 7 700 740,56 33 422 841,33

C Autres creances

I Comptes de regularisation - passif 517 672,53 101 094,78

R AUTRES PROVISIONS POUR RISQUES ET CHARGES (g) 214 017,59 461 222,09

C ECARTS DE CONVERSION - PASSIF (h)( Elements circulants ) 581 388,40 82 348,93

U TOTAL  II  ( f+g+h ) 129 098 660,46 181 537 924,82

T TRESORERIE PASSIF 32 778 757,11 22 746 811,08

R Credits d'escompte 3 701 168,29 4 714 658,21

E Credit de tresorerie 4 042 617,85

S Banques ( soldes crediteurs ) 29 077 588,82 13 989 535,02

TOTAL  III 32 778 757,11 22 746 811,08

TOTAL   I+II+III 566 713 501,32 609 657 299,06

(1) Capital personnel debiteur

(2) Beneficiaire (+) . deficitaire (-)



Tableau n°2

COMPTE DE PRODUITS ET CHARGES ( HORS TAXES )

Société VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A

Totaux de Totaux de

Propres à Concernant les L'exercice L'exercice

L'exercice exercices précédents 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

1 2  3 = 1 + 2  3 = 1 + 2

I PRODUITS D'EXPLOITATION

Ventes de marchandises 25 887 599,22 25 887 599,22 30 102 279,82

Ventes de biens et services produits 417 065 584,92 417 065 584,92 472 376 933,96

E Variation de stock de produits -3 610 065,47 -3 610 065,47 8 933 448,69

X Immobilisations produites pour l'Ese p/elle-même

P Subvention d'exploitation 4 081 366,67 4 081 366,67 6 657 214,19

L Autres produits d'exploitation

O Reprises d'exploitation; transfert de charges -                                

I TOTAL  I 443 424 485,34 443 424 485,34 518 069 876,66

T II CHARGES D'EXPLOITATION

A Achats revendus de marchandises 22 209 992,64 22 209 992,64 20 599 284,42

T Achat consommes de matières et de fournitures 161 715 464,14 161 715 464,14 208 407 785,64

I Autres charges externes 134 009 748,54 134 009 748,54 136 350 457,07

O Impôts et taxes 35 711 747,97 35 711 747,97 46 234 061,46

N Charges de personnel 58 523 607,80 58 523 607,80 61 023 615,25

Autres charges d'exploitation

Dotations d'exploitation 45 252 760,72            45 252 760,72 43 778 129,29

TOTAL  II 457 423 321,81 457 423 321,81 516 393 333,13

III RESULTAT D'EXPLOITATION  ( I - II ) -13 998 836,47 1 676 543,53

IV PRODUITS FINANCIERS

F

Produits des titres de participation et autres titres 

immobilises

I Gains de change 10 287 104,84 10 287 104,84 340 624,80

N Intérêts et autres produits financiers

A Reprises financières; transfert de charges 26 259 003 26 259 003,23 44 501 568,56

N TOTAL  IV 36 546 108,07 36 546 108,07 44 842 193,36

C V CHARGES FINANCIERES

I Charges d'intérêts 10 139 756,24 10 139 756,24 18 569 673,46

E Pertes de changes 27 152 150,53 27 152 150,53 22 346 398,23

R Autres charges financières

Dotations financières 214 017,59 214 017,59 26 259 003,23

TOTAL  V 37 505 924,36 37 505 924,36 67 175 074,92

VI RESULTAT FINANCIER ( IV - V ) -959 816,29 -22 332 881,56

VII RESULTAT COURANT ( III - VI) -14 958 652,76 -20 656 338,03

1) Variation de stocks : stocks final - stocks initial ;augmentation (+) ;diminution (-)

2) Achats revendus ou consommes : achats - variation de stocks.

EXERCICE CLOS LE 31/12/2020

           OPERATIONS



Tableau n°2

COMPTE DE PRODUITS ET CHARGES ( HORS TAXES )   (suite)

Société VARUN BEVERAGES MOROCCO S.A

           OPERATIONS Totaux de Totaux de

Propres à Concernant les L'exercice L'exercice

L'exercice exercices précédents 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

1 2  3 = 1 + 2  3 = 1 + 2

VII RESULTAT COURANT ( Report ) -14 958 652,76 -20 656 338,03

VIII PRODUITS NON COURANTS

Produits des cessions d'immobilisations 225 259,65 225 259,65 244 775,89

N Subventions d'équilibre

O Reprises sur subventions d'investissement

N Autres produits non courants 54 665,28 54 665,28

Reprises non courantes; transferts de charges

C TOTAL  VIII 279 924,93 279 924,93 244 775,89

O IX CHARGES NON COURANTES

U Valeurs nettes d'amort. des Immo cédées 383 446,29 383 446,29

A Subventions accordées

N Autres charges non courantes 1 707 492,31 1 707 492,31 1 196 969,33

T Dotations non courantes aux amortiss. et provision

TOTAL  IX 2 090 938,60 2 090 938,60 1 196 969,33

X RESULTAT NON COURANT ( VIII- IV ) -1 811 013,67 -952 193,44

XI RESULTAT AVANT IMPOTS ( VII+ X ) -16 769 666,43 -21 608 531,47

XII IMPOTS SUR LES RESULTATS 2 319 086,94 3 056 865,55

XIII RESULTAT NET ( XI - XII ) -19 088 753,37 -24 665 397,02

XIV TOTAL DES PRODUITS ( I + IV + VIII ) 480 250 518,34 563 156 845,91

XV TOTAL DES CHARGES ( II + V + IX + XII ) 499 339 271,71 587 822 242,93

XVI RESULTAT NET ( XIV - XV ) -19 088 753,37 -24 665 397,02















































Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2020

Note RTGS  USD RTGS  USD 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Assets

1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 1A 2,669,422,099     32,638,869    2,592,771,663    34,484,740    

(b) Capital work in progress 1B 146,492,013       1,791,149      10,066,078         133,808        

(c) Financial assets

(i) Others 2 977,836              11,956          399,772             5,314            

(d) Other non-current assets 3 59,225,285         724,144        105,498,264       1,402,384      

Total non-current assets 2,876,117,232    35,166,118    2,708,735,777   36,026,246   

2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 4 1,030,578,006     12,600,817    681,761,048       9,062,623      

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 5 306,768,734       3,750,843      97,181,943         1,291,836      

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 150,442,731       1,839,455      336,562,428       4,473,911      

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 7 172,775,031       2,112,510      282,347,474       3,753,234      

(iv) Others 8 -                     -               -                    -               

(c) Current tax assets 9 -                     -               -                    -               

(d) Other current assets 10 794,499,412       9,714,298      431,835,569       5,740,374      

Total current assets 2,455,063,914    30,017,924   1,829,688,462    24,321,978   

Total assets       5,331,181,146     65,184,042     4,538,424,239     60,348,225 

Equity and liabilities

3) Equity

(a) Equity share capital 11 6,068                 1,100            6,068                 1,100            

(b) Other equity 12 2,121,663,482     25,940,430    872,890,641       11,604,579    

Total equity 2,121,669,549    25,941,530   872,896,709      11,605,679    

4) Liabilities

A) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 1,216,914,896     14,879,148    1,355,317,490    18,033,013    

Total non-current liabilties 1,216,914,896     14,879,148    1,355,317,490    18,033,013    

B) Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 -                     -               -                    -               

(ii) Trade payables 15 855,517,747       10,460,366    1,004,892,557    13,357,998    

(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 759,794,975       9,289,969      1,084,491,587    14,416,105    

(b) Other current liabilities 17 377,283,980       4,613,029      220,825,896       2,935,430      

(c) Current tax liabilities (Net) 18 -                     -               -                    -               

Total current liabilties 1,992,596,701    24,363,364   2,310,210,040    30,709,533   

Total liabilities 3,209,511,597    39,242,512   3,665,527,530   48,742,546   

Total equity and liabilities 5,331,181,146     65,184,042   4,538,424,239   60,348,225   

For PFK Zimbabwe For Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd

Chief Finance Officer Director

Total

Particulars

Total

Chartered Accountants

Place: Harare

Date: 22-01-2021

Sydney Bvurere (Partner)



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 December 2020

RTGS  USD RTGS  USD 

Note 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Income

I Revenue from operations 19    8,100,261,613          99,041,427    5,983,484,180    79,538,224 

II Other income 20         10,084,900               123,307              990,608           13,168 

III Total Income (I + II)     8,110,346,513          99,164,735    5,984,474,788    79,551,392 

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 21    3,048,463,563          36,770,364    2,378,369,447    31,134,911 

Purchase of traded goods 22       166,334,764            2,033,765       292,666,181      3,890,400 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-

progress

23      (170,810,766)          (1,585,471)        (44,740,573)        (114,073)

Employee benefits expense 24       425,111,781            5,197,817       315,929,930      4,199,644 

Finance costs 25       225,835,160            2,761,273       267,046,221      3,525,568 

Depreciation expense 26       289,801,046            3,543,381       230,814,023      3,068,202 

Other expenses 27    2,198,568,648          26,881,771    2,734,749,974    36,353,207 

Total expenses (IV)    6,183,304,195          75,602,901    6,174,835,202    82,057,860 

V (Loss)/profit/ before prior period items (III-IV)    1,927,042,318          23,561,834      (190,360,414)     (2,506,468)

VI Prior period items                       -                          -                         -                    -   

VII (Loss)/profit before tax (V-VI)    1,927,042,318          23,561,834      (190,360,414)     (2,506,468)

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 

(EBITDA)

2,432,593,623  29,743,181        306,509,222     4,074,134    

VIIII Tax expense:

(1) Current tax -                    -                    -                    -               

(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods -                    -                    -                    -               

(3) Deferred tax -                    -                    -                    -               

Total Tax expenses -                   -                    -                   -              

IX (Loss)/profit  for the year (VII-VIII) 1,927,042,318   23,561,834        (190,360,414)    (2,506,468)   

X Other comprehensive income for the reporting period/year, net 

of tax

   1,927,042,318          23,561,834      (190,360,414)    (2,506,468)

For PFK Zimbabwe For Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd

Chief Finance Officer Director

TotalTotal

Place: Harare

Date: 22-01-2021

Particulars

Chartered Accountants

Sydney Bvurere (Partner)



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

Statement of changes in equity

1. Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of USD 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

(Amount in RTGS)

Particulars Number of shares Amount

Balance as at 01 January 2019 6,068                       6,068                        

Changes in share capital during the year -                           -                           

Balance as at 31 December 2019 6,068                       6,068                       

Changes in share capital during the period -                           -                           

Balance as at 31 December 2020 6,068                       6,068                       

2. Other equity

(Amount in RTGS)

Particulars Retained earnings Total 

Balance as at 01 January 2019 1,063,251,055           1,063,251,055           

Profit for the year ended (190,360,414)            (190,360,414)            

Balance as at 31 December 2019 872,890,641             872,890,641             

Profit for the period ended 1,927,042,318           1,927,042,318           

IAS 29 Adjustment (678,269,477)            (678,269,477)            

Balance as at 31 December 2020 2,121,663,482          2,121,663,482          

For Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Ltd

Director

For PFK Zimbabwe

Chartered Accountants

Sydney Bvurere (Partner)

Place: Harare

Date: 22-01-2021

Chief Finance Officer



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

1A Property, plant and equipment

(Amount in RTGS)

Gross block Land Land Building
 Plant & 

Machinery 
Furniture & Vehicles Office  Computer Containers

 Post-mix vending 

machines 
Grand

Freehold Leasehold Building
Plant & 

Machinery
Fixtures Vehicles Equipment Equipment Containers

  and refrigerators 

(Visi Cooler) 
Total

Balance as at 01 January 2019                20,428,834                    -            184,674,385          271,701,405 5,083,333         17,587,045        2,777,520        1,201,868        -                21,528,835               524,983,226       

Additions during the year 28,476,381          84,683,782           1,571,600         2,653,754          2,827,000        656,856           -                8,498,935                  129,368,308       

Disposals during the year -                           -                 -                      -                      -                   -                    -                  -                  -                -                            -                     

Balance as at 31 December 2019 20,428,834               -                 213,150,766        356,385,187        6,654,933         20,240,799        5,604,520        1,858,724        -                30,027,771               654,351,533       

Restated Opening Balance in RTGS 91,640,780               -                 956,163,346        1,598,692,136      29,853,061       90,797,282        25,141,063      8,337,964        -                134,700,214              2,935,325,845    

Additions during the period 14,049,783          206,327,161         1,119,765         48,382,855        11,706,688       8,815,482        74,610,914                365,012,649       

Disposals during the period -                     

Balance as at 31 December 2020 91,640,780               -                 970,213,129        1,805,019,297      30,972,826       139,180,137       36,847,751      17,153,446      -                209,311,128              3,300,338,494    

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 January 2019                              -                      -                4,759,721            14,507,898 281,629            2,192,478          245,300           168,031           -                2,433,641                 24,588,699         

Depreciation charge during the period ended              9,670,590            31,649,148 1,053,482          3,794,028          625,615           284,335           4,376,548                  51,453,746         

Reversal on disposal of assets -                           -                 -                      -                      -                   -                    -                  -                  -                -                            -                     

Balance as at 31 December 2019 -                           -                 14,430,311          46,157,045          1,335,111          5,986,506          870,915           452,366          -                6,810,190                  76,042,444         

Restated Opening Balance in RTGS -                           -                 64,732,276          207,053,795        5,989,115         26,854,595        3,906,798        2,029,250        -                30,549,521               341,115,350        

Depreciation charge during the period ended            48,314,444          165,097,778 6,112,065          24,606,397         5,656,483         2,599,109        37,414,770                289,801,046       

Reversal on disposal of assets -                     

Balance as at 31 December 2020 -                           -                 113,046,720        372,151,574         12,101,180        51,460,991        9,563,281        4,628,358        -                67,964,292               630,916,396       

Net block

Balance as at 31 December 2019 20,428,834               -                 198,720,455        310,228,142         5,319,821         14,254,293        4,733,605        1,406,357        -                23,217,581                578,309,089       

Balance as at 31 December 2020 91,640,780               -                 857,166,409        1,432,867,723      18,871,646       87,719,146        27,284,470      12,525,088      -                141,346,837              2,669,422,099    

1B Capital work in progress

(Amount in RTGS)

Particulars Amount

Balance as at 01 Jan 2019 15,922,724                

Additions during the year 45,250,388                

Capitalisation during the year 58,929,152                

Balance as at 31 December 2019 2,243,960                10,066,078     

Reinstated RTGS Balance 10,066,078               

Additions during the period 400,645,412              

Capitalisation during the period 264,219,478              

Balance as at 31 December 2020 146,492,013             146,492,013   0                         



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

RTGS  USD RTGS  USD 

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Property, plant and equipment Refer Note 1 2,669,422,099   32,638,869        2,592,771,663    34,484,740        

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Capital work in progress Refer Note 1 146,492,013      1,791,149          10,066,078        133,808             

2. Other financial assets

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits 977,836            11,956               399,772             5,314                 

Loan to related parties -                   -                    -                    -                    

Other loans -                   -                    -                    -                    

Foreign Ex Forward asset -                   -                    -                    -                    

Less: PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES -                   -                    -                    -                    

-                   -                    -                    -                    

977,836           11,956               399,772            5,314                

3. Other non-current assets

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Capital advances 59,225,285       724,144             105,498,264       1,402,384          

59,225,285       724,144             105,498,264      1,402,384          

4. Inventories

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Raw material 641,046,596      7,838,039          549,105,160       7,299,234          

Stores and spares 172,238,572      2,105,951          85,054,054        1,130,620          

Intermediate Goods 35,870,530       438,587             -                    -                    

Work in Progress -                   -                    -                    -                    

Finished goods 181,422,308      2,218,240          47,601,834        632,769             

1,030,578,006  12,600,817        681,761,048      9,062,623         

5. Trade receivables

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Trade receivable, considered good - Unsecured 306,768,734      3,750,843          97,181,943        1,291,836          

Trade receivable, considered good - Secured -                   -                    -                    -                    

Trade receivable - Credit impaired 76,594              937                   343,590             4,567                 

306,845,328      3,751,780          97,525,532        1,296,403          

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses 76,594.00         936.51               343,590             4,567                 

306,768,734     3,750,843         97,181,943        1,291,836          

6. Cash and cash equivalents

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Balance with banks:

- On current accounts 137,525,432      1,681,515          312,208,842       4,150,180          

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months -                   -                    -                    -                    

Cash and cash equivalents:

- Cheques/drafts on hand -                   -                    -                    -                    

- Cash on hand 12,917,299       157,939             24,353,586        323,731             

150,442,731     1,839,455          336,562,428      4,473,911          

7. Other bank balances

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 

months *

172,775,031      2,112,510          282,347,474       3,753,234          

172,775,031     2,112,510          282,347,474      3,753,234         

8. Other current financial assets

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Security deposits -                   -                    -                    -                    

-                  -                   -                   -                   

TotalTotal



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

9. Current tax assets

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Advance tax (net of provisions) -                   -                    -                    -                    

-                  -                   -                   -                   

10. Other current assets

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Advances to:

Employees 3,674,613         44,929               2,348,389          31,217               

Contractors and suppliers 680,408,031      8,319,309          402,296,709       5,347,715          

Prepaid expenses 110,416,768      1,350,059          27,190,471        361,442             

Balance with statutory/government authorities -                   -                    -                    -                    

794,499,412     9,714,298          431,835,569      5,740,374         

11. Equity share capital

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Authorised share capital

-                   -                    -                    -                    

-                  -                   -                   -                   

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Equity shares of USD 1 each 6,068                1,100                 6,068                 1,100                 

6,068               1,100                 6,068                1,100                 

12. Other equity

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year -                   2,785,364          -                    -                    

Add: Adjustment during the year -                   (9,225,983)         -                    2,785,364          

Balance at the end of the year -                  (6,440,619)        -                   2,785,364         

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period/year 872,890,641      8,819,215          1,063,251,055    11,325,683        

Less: IAS 29 Adjustment (678,269,477)    -                    -                    -                    

Add: (Loss)/profit for the reporting period/year 1,927,042,318   23,561,834        (190,360,414)      (2,506,468)         

Balance at the end of the reporting period/year 2,121,663,482   32,381,049        872,890,641      8,819,215          

2,121,663,482   25,940,430        872,890,641      11,604,579        

13. Non Current Borrowings

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Loans from bank (secured) 67,273,015       822,543             670,744,674       8,933,013          

Loan from Parent Company (unsecured) 1,149,641,881   14,056,604        684,572,815       9,100,000          

1,216,914,896   14,879,148        1,355,317,490    18,033,013        



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

14. Current Borrowings

Working capital facilities

-from banks- (secured) -                   -                    -                    -                    

-                  -                   -                   -                   

15. Trade payables

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises -                   -                    -                    -                    

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises

855,517,747      10,460,366        1,004,892,557    13,357,998        

855,517,747     10,460,366        1,004,892,557   13,357,998        

16. Other financial liabilities

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Current maturities of long term debt 611,498,648      7,476,758          916,611,546       12,184,482        

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 23,117,656       282,658             25,336,104        336,792             

Payable for capital expenditure 6,979,457         85,337               26,662,714        354,426             

Employee related payables 7,313,896         89,427               1,612,042          21,429               

Interest payable to parent company on Loan 100,990,202      1,234,801          65,358,109        868,803             

Commission payable to parent company 9,895,115         120,987             48,911,073        650,173             

759,794,975     9,289,969         1,084,491,587    14,416,105         

17. Other current liabilities

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Advances from customers 186,544,831      2,280,873          63,672,113        846,391             

Statutory dues payable 190,739,149      2,332,156          157,153,783       2,089,039          

377,283,980     4,613,029          220,825,896      2,935,430         

18. Current tax liability

 As at  As at  As at  As at 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Provision for income tax (net of taxes paid) -                   -                    -                    -                    

-                  -                   -                   -                   

19. Revenue from operations

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Revenue from operations (gross)

Sale of products 8,099,051,809   99,026,635        5,980,816,063    79,502,757        

Other operating revenue

Scrap sales 1,209,805         14,792               2,668,117          35,467               

8,100,261,613   99,041,427        5,983,484,180   79,538,224        

20. Other income

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Interest on:

-bank deposits 1,521,918         18,608               -                    -                    

Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations 8,562,982         104,699             -                    -                    

Gain on sale of fixed assets (net) -                   -                    -                    -                    

Miscellaneous -                   -                    990,608             13,168               

Excess provisions written back -                   -                    -                    -                    

10,084,900       123,307             990,608            13,168               

21. Cost of materials consumed

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Raw material and packing material consumed

Inventories at beginning of the year 549,105,160      7,299,234          38,676,503        7,011,375          

Purchases during the year (net) 3,183,010,184   37,830,101        2,963,950,532    32,421,768        

3,732,115,343   45,129,335        3,002,627,035    39,433,143        

Sold during the year 6,734,654         82,344               75,152,428        998,998             

Inventories at end of the year 676,917,126      8,276,626          549,105,160       7,299,234          

3,048,463,563  36,770,364        2,378,369,447   31,134,911         

22. Purchases of traded goods

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Beverages 166,334,764      2,033,765          292,666,181       3,890,400          

166,334,764     2,033,765         292,666,181      3,890,400         



Varun Beverages (Zimbabwe) (Private) Limited

23. Changes in inventories of traded goods

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

As at the beginning of the year

Finished goods 10,611,542       632,769             2,861,261          518,697             

10,611,542       632,769             2,861,261          518,697             

As at the closing of the year

Finished goods 181,422,308      2,218,240          47,601,834        632,769             

Work In Progress -                   -                    -                    -                    

181,422,308      2,218,240          47,601,834        632,769             

(170,810,766)    (1,585,471)         (44,740,573)      (114,073)            

24. Employee benefits expense

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Salaries and wages 381,487,865      4,664,430          291,781,111       3,878,635          

Staff welfare expenses 43,623,916       533,387             24,148,820        321,009             

425,111,781      5,197,817          315,929,930      4,199,644          

25. Finance costs

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Interest on:

Term loans 148,055,907      1,810,271          204,393,743       2,692,731          

Bank guarantee fees to Parent Company 44,836,838       548,217             24,497,660        325,646             

Loan from parent company 32,942,415       402,785             38,154,818        507,191             

225,835,160     2,761,273          267,046,221      3,525,568         

26. Depreciation expense

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Depreciation on tangible assets 289,801,046      3,543,381          230,814,023       3,068,202          

289,801,046     3,543,381          230,814,023      3,068,202         
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27. Other expenses

For the period  For the period  For the period  For the period 

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2019

Power and fuel 289,486,634      3,539,536          248,135,715       3,298,458          

Repairs to plant and equipment 276,849,255      3,385,020          118,131,703       1,570,320          

Repairs to buildings 47,468,738       580,397             2,753,023          36,596               

Other repairs 7,460,328         91,217               2,182,331          29,010               

Consumption of stores and spares 132,843,200      1,624,266          51,163,010        680,108             

Rent 79,798,421       975,691             31,234,390        415,198             

Rates and taxes 1,463,997         17,900               1,431,893          19,034               

Insurance 18,214,409       222,707             8,847,546          117,610             

Printing and stationery 4,854,366         59,354               5,555,461          73,849               

Communication 7,217,353         88,246               4,022,656          53,473               

Travelling and conveyance 18,352,775       224,398             25,536,854        339,460             

Payment to the auditors as

   Audit and reviews 3,387,135         41,414               3,860,499          51,317               

   Taxation matters -                   -                    -                    -                    

   Other matters -                   -                    -                    -                    

   Reimbursement of expenses -                   -                    -                    -                    

Vehicle running and maintenance 10,714,682       131,008             20,350,849        270,523             

Lease and hire charges 66,551,956       813,727             21,829,798        290,183             

Security and service charges 108,854,669      1,330,960          10,388,577        138,095             

Professional charges and consultancy 279,460,152      3,416,943          77,201,630        1,026,238          

Bank charges 116,551,329      1,425,066          123,218,517       1,637,939          

Advertisement and sales promotion 81,413,341       995,436             83,233,308        1,106,417          

Meeting and conference -                   -                    -                    -                    

Royalty -                   -                    -                    -                    

Freight, octroi and insurance paid (net) 371,934,718      4,547,624          280,871,542       3,733,615          

Delivery vehicle running and maintenance 231,328,067      2,828,435          28,797,139        382,799             

Distribution expenses 15,459,600       189,024             5,379,261          71,506               

Loading and unloading charges 20,340,630       248,704             4,019,856          53,436               

Donations -                   -                    5,388                 72                     

Property, plant and equipment written off -                   -                    -                    -                    

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 319                  4                       -                    -                    

Bad debts and advances written off 1,993,822         24,378               1,821,026          24,207               

Allowance for expected credit losses -                   -                    -                    -                    

Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure -                   -                    -                    -                    

Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations -                   -                    1,571,746,219    20,893,443        

General office and other miscellaneous expenses 6,568,752         80,316               3,031,780          40,301               

2,198,568,648  26,881,771        2,734,749,974   36,353,207        






























































































